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(1) You should know that the borders were watched and guarded by
the paid /VH people. Anyone who stitempled to eross the frontier
8 was shot down like a dog. The AVE-nen received 5-600 forints
a8 reward fo» each parson thzgee'm, desd or alive., They
aceused those who tried to £33 ss tralitors to thelr country.
To this I say that the Hungarian govermment is the traitor,
but the people are nmot. That government must be axmihillated.
We have no use for it whatsoever. It is an extremely barbaelan
regime .
(2) The whole thing started st 2 p.m. on the 23rd of Oetober. The
youth of Szeped organized the MEFESZ and they went to Al
Budaspest vhere, after some vaeillation, the Ministry eof the
Interior vas prepared to permit the demonstration. This was
i a heavy blow to the murderous AVH en:ben%nll- (gyilkos AVH
pribékek).

(2 a)  Yes, there was =n incubstion period, They took Ldszlé
Rajk out cf his grave and buried him again,and this whole thing
was brosdcast toX the entire natifn and the people got stirred
up and becsme restless immedliately, I, and my family, too,
partieipated in this general enthusiasm vhich was directed
againgt the Rékosi-govermment.

(2 b) The youth eni the workers of Budapest contributed a great deal
to 4t. The people were ecompletely oppressed and they searched
for a way out of this unbearsble situation., Not only in
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Pudapest, but even cn state farms, the people became restleas
and began to move., We, too, helped Budapest in whatever we
eould, so that the Revolution may succeed. Unfortunately, it
was mot sueeessful.

(2 1) Stalin's death ny have eontributed to 1t, and I think Molotor

and Beria d4id, toeo.

(v ii) Yes, Imre Nagy's premiership did eontribute to it, well, I should
szy 50 or 60 percent. The people were very enthmsiastie sbout
Nagy. The people were erying when They listened to the Nagy
program on the rafie, But when we heard Rikosi's speech shortly
after that, then we saw thst our situstion began to darken azainm.
We became disillusioned, though we imew that Rékosli's days were
eounted.

(2 b 111) This contributed to it insofar as Tito is clossr to the West
and 13 pro-Wegtern in his orientation. Tito intends to destroy
the Russlian Commmists. Bub he, too, is probably afrald that
he himsels would be annihllated in the process.

(2 b iv) I don't lmow anmything about that.

(2 v) That mosi probsbly @&id eomtribute to it, MNoreover, sfter the
eoming of Gomulka, the Hungarian people, too, began to move.

It was shortly sfter the eoming of Gemmlika that the Szeged youth
organized the MEFESZ,

(2b vi) I on't mow.

(2 b vii) The funeral of Rajk eontributed to it 93 percent. The people™
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began to wall and to murmur and to grumble at the same time,
At the time when Ger3 and Kdddr visited Belgrade, the people
were already moving.

(2 b vi1i) PFrem that <ime on, we, too, bagan to move, We felt that we

(2 e)

(2 a9

(2 e)

(2 £)

(2 g)

had similar ights and that it was sbout time to throw off the
chaing froem our neeks.

Yes. This was &t the time vhen Imre Nagy became Prime Minister
in 1953. The people already then slmost erupted. Criess of
"Down with Rikosi" were audible even then.

Yes, I felt a change was in the alr as early as 1953. At the
time of Nagy's premiership. And then again at the time when
Yugoslavis snd Russia again beeame friends. The people alresdy
then were in s fighting meod, but they were sgubjeeted to
pressure snd were again subjugated.

I doni't know, They had no chance of developing because they
were held back with pincers. This ls true of Péter Veress srd
of all the others., They tock Péter Veress to Moseow and to
other places, but he does not feel as the Russians do.

There were sueh chenges in the Ludigs Matyl too. Several of
ite numbers were suppressed and eonTiscated., There was ne
appreeiable change in the Szgbad Nep's tone. In the Sziv Ujsdg
it was felt nore.

Yes, speeches made at the time of the Rajk funeral impressed

me very deeply.
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The people did not like the XXth Congress at all. The XXth
Congress brought sbout such changes whieh were designed to
prevent our people‘’s disentanggflement from Russia.

Because the Mevolt eame as a result of the Raji affalr and

as a result of the Goamulka affair. These two events gave it
the impetus 1t needed to go on its way.

I don't know what to say. All I know is that the Rajk funeral
was resporsible for all the things that followed, Had it not
been for the Rajk episode, Rakosi in all probsbility would have
been reelected. It is true that even before the Rajk affair
there were disturbsnees,and voiess of protest couldé be heard
here and there, People demanded t¢ know why does Hungary give
assistance to Egypt when the Hungarian population itself is
walking in rags. Or take for instenee the time of the devastating |
floods in Hungary. The Ameriean assistanee was distributed to
mexbers of the Cammmist Party. The poor people have not seen
anything of it,

To put an end once and for a1l to commumism in Bungary, and to
gbolish the Russian system in our country. Everyone wished the
Fussian gystem to be thrown into the water snd that in its stead
the U.S.A gystem be introduced.

There was a demonstration. AVH-men fired at the demonstrators
in front of the Parlismment building. That's when it started.
The demongtrators geized srms. Life anéd death did not matter then,
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everyone desired only one thing, namely to get rid of the whole
syastem., The Maleter party, for inatance, consisted of men who
were trained in Russia, Eut their hearts were Hungarian.
Yes, the goals were varioua: to snnihilste the system and to
start a new ¢ne, based on the Western exsmple., Unfortunately,
it 41é not twm out that way. We are still very anxious to
drive the Russians out of Hungary and we are quite ready to
aeecoamplish this in eooperstion with the U.3.A.
Members of the AVH, former chairmen of the eounelils, party
seeretaries, party and non-party informers, and well-paid and
decorsted Stekhanovists. These m» were the people who opposed
the Fevolt. Many of these people flad tc Yugeslavia.

Iet me give ycu an example from my own experience; out
on the state farm we threw down the red star from the top of
the warehouse and we hoisted the Kossuth-emblemed flag in its
stead. Ths farm director and the party secretary vehenently
opposed our actions, The seeretary sald: "Don't you think that
you will b2 sorry for what you are now doing?” He said, the
red star was the symbol of the republic and warned us that Kossuth
was long since dead, and that no cne cares for him any more,
We did not listen to what he was sayilng and we chased him away.
Also, we openly listened to Westerm radio broadeasts, tuning
ouwr sets o1 loud, so that everyone eould hear. Again, the party
secretary zame anéd threatened us, but we didn't pay amy attention
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to him,

Turnecats were neutral, people who were afrald to make any move,
fearing to loose their bread thereby. There were plemty of
these, Ona the state farm, sueh people as machine-station
mechanies and offiee personnel were non-eommittal.

Russisns, get out! Let's introduce the Western system inte
Hungary! Lster we made a slogan of our own: "Azt hiszitek,
ruszkik, hogy 1isztbdl van a lsngos, le van tojva Kddsr Jdnos.”
The Revolt was 100 pereent anti-Commmist.

By anti-Comunist I mean a complete rejeetion of everything that
went on in Bungary from 1948 on. The people of Hungary do not
need this system, nor do they want any part of it. They take
everythinz sway fmm the people. They throw people into jail.
They beat ard torture them. The people are trembling ef fear
day and night,

Those who did jJoin the party did so only te avoid persecution
or jail, Trkese people were in the party and yet they were
against the party. I should say that about 70 pereent of party
members weire against the party.

Yes, The chief agronomist on the state farm, for instanee.

If Soviet troops had rot been brought in, we would have been
victoriocus, We were vietorious, as a matter of fact. Many a
Russian fought on our side. THere would have come a repudiation
of the Easzt and we would have moved towards the Wast. The U.S.A,
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system would have been established in Hungery. The U.S.A,
assisted Hungary eeonamically, though the goods the U.S. sent us
were not distributed justly. Imre Nagy himself was Western-
oriented.

We knew of all the events instantameously, beezuse we had a
powerful radio receiver. We were eowherds, both I and other
members of my family., and we eccntinued to work because the
animals necsded constant care and sttention. But we organized
our werk in such a way that we did have free time, whieh we
devoted to revolutionary setivities. liy son snd other youths
went to Bitaszék and got some wespons from there. We, the
ecwherds and ecachmen and other workers from the state farm,
assembled in the machine-shop of the machine statlion and organized.
We proceedsd to the warehouse bulldiag and demolished the
two-and-a~-nalf meter red star which was on the top of the warshouse
roof. We threw the star down and people below desiroyed it
coanpletely. Thereafter we proceeded to the administration
building, whers we knew = Kossuth-tricolord was kept. We took
that and hoisted 1t on the top of the warehouse roof, to the
plage wher:z the star had been before. The party seeretary cane
out anéd protested, but we did not liaten to him at all, We
were listening to the radio day and night after that, putting
the receiver set on the window and turning it on loud, so that
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everybody eould hear it. A day or two later we organized a
food eolleetion and we sent a large amount of food to Budapest .
Scme of us went to the state farm director as a delegation and
we asked him to eentribute food frem the farm stoek to the
fighters of Dudapest. He 3 refused at first, but after much
persuasior he sgreed to give both meat and flour. The party
seeretary refused to give anything ot all. The chief meehanic
stole a truel: and we loaded it with all kinds of food and sent
it up to Budapest. The party seeretary oppesed all this as much
as he could, dut he did not dare proveke us. He did have tweo
machine pistcls and two regular pistols, but I had EXE six
hand grenades, one machine pistol, sad several military rifles,
80 We were nct afraid of him, I was going to shoot that dog
down, but then again I did not want to have EXX blood X on my
hends, A Tour-member revolutiomary zroup (ocne former regular
policemsn mné three others) eame %o the state farm from Bitaszek
and disarmed the party seeretary. The Bitaszék poliee force
went over in toto to the side of the revolutionaries and they
digtributed 21l thelr arms to the people.

The population cn the state farm split into two p:h.
with the party seeretary leading a anall group which epposed
the Revolutien. Other members of thils group were the famm
director, Ghe warehouse chief, and the ehief brigade leader of
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the eattle-breeding section. Scme people, meehenics and office
workers, remalned nm-nmlttal,'unlif all the rest of us supperted
the revolution in every way we coulg.

Four or five Rusaian tnl:u.were gocug. towards XE 'ﬁ’h’nl. a
village not too far away from us. ﬁl_:oirwhithrwﬂ:a
forest region where geveral thousand revolutionaries took wp
positions. The revoluticnaries :w the tanks and killed
a number of Rusgian soldiers. Two of the tanks were exploded
and one of them fell into an sbyss. The revoluticnaries
eaptured the Russisn eanmanding offieer of the eity of Pees,
dragged him out to the Meesek mountains snd killed him there.
The revolutionaries had a great many ears and trucks at their
disposal. They alweys bought their food and other supdlies,
paying for all the items with eash, They never once plundered
or stole anything.

In Vémend, for instance, the revolutionaries visited a
store and wanted to buy eight loaveg of bresd. The storekeeper,
a Jew, refused to give them any. “To the Russisns I will give
bread any timf he said, Lm without momey, but to you,
scoundrel eatehpolls, I will mot, You ought to mni'u said.
The revolutionaries left their mcney behind in the store, did
not take amy bread, locked IE the st@re aid took the Jew with
thenm into the forest. Ilm'tmm happened to the Jew
there,

In Bitaszék the revolutionsries earried out all documents
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from govermment offiees and set thenm all to fire. There was
a Russian memorial in the eity, teoo. This the rebels demolished
and destroyed. In a govermment bookstore in Bitaszék there was
a Stalin-bust. The bust was dragged out into the street and
beheaded. Some of the rebels poured gasolime imto Stalin's
head and ‘gnited 1t., "Here is the ingenious Stalin" (Itt wvam
a langeszil Sztalin).
In Pées, Keeakemet, KEHXEE Kalocsa, Baja, and Kaposvar, the
Hungarian army units took the side of the revolutionaries. Army
offieers et the enlisted men go home, with their weapons snd
all.

In Keposvar a large mass of demonstrators marched to one
of the military barracks. There were five or sim Russian tanks
there. Tre commander of the Russisn tanks gave order te his
men to proceed against the demonstrators. The leaderd of the
demonstrators, in turn, asked everycme to remain steady and
not to retreat one step. The tanis proceeded with full speed
sgainst the mltitude, but, as the pecple did not retrest sn
inch from thelr positions, the Russians stopped their wehieles
right in front of the people's shoes. The Hungarian garrison
went uur;tl‘:e Revolution soon after that. The Russians retreated
and abandcned the EEEf e¢ity. Revolvtionists proeeeded against
the AVH birraeks and eaptured the AVH-men, These, however,
were freed later by the Rusgians,
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I have mot secen amy mob violence. A factory worker from Bonyhad
eame to Mcracs (a village elose to Bitaszék) by ear, assembled
the people, and held a big speech, umingmtum
and to help destroy the Russian and Humgarian system. He urged
everyone to help initiate a new system, based on the U.S.A.
model, Scon after Kadar came to power, this man was seized and
exeeuted.

We were living in the puszta, far removed and isolated from the
larger eitien. XEven the nearest villages were far away. We
learned of the Revolution by radic, and we did everything we
eould %o €0 our share in our own place =nd way. Ve demolished
the red star and we holsted the Kossuth-flag, We eollected
food and sent it to Budapest. We helped to disarm the party
seeretary and we kept our weapons, ready for any emergsncy.

We put our big radio receiver in the window, twmed it on loud
and the workers assembled there and listened and applauded

end acelaimed what they heard.

We helped the fighters with food supplies.

Yes, we did remove the red star.

We received a few leafletsm from Biteszek, These we read and
handed them o ¥ others to read as well.

The revolvtionary couneil was organized in the puszta as soon
s we heard a proclamatien to this effeet on the radio, I, teo,
wag instrvmental in its organizetion. I did not becomes a
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leading muber of it, for I have seen how they changed colors
under the csavas., Offiee workers, mechanies, and scme other
former leaders R (Commmists) were the prineipal members of
the revolutionary couneil, They did not want us, grey and
obseure workers, because they lmew that we would not let tThem
stay if we got in.

Hot applicable,

I liked Maleter most, because he was on Imre Hagy's side.

I dondt lnmow of any.

In many instsnees, Russian troops were fighting eother Russian
troops.

Imre Hegynail, the revolutionary leader of the XIth Distriet of
Budapest, related to us how many Russians did defect znd went
over to the side of the insurgents.

I listemed to the radio. I also spoke with those who traveled
to smd fron Suvdapest, transporting food to the eapital.

We did no': reeeive any newspapers out in the puszta during the
Revolution.

We spoke, for instance, with Budapest youths at the Bataszék
railway s:ation., NE They told us of the events that took place
in Budapest.

Yes, I did listen to the radio, both domestlie and forelgn.

T listened to the Veoiee of Ameriea, to Free Europe, to Faris,
+0 Ankara, to0 Austria, and to Madrid, I also listened to
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Magyardver, Pest, Miskole, Pées, and to others.

Party organizations were completely disbanded. Revolutionary
counells were organized everywhere and the red stars and other
Russian sligns were destroyed within 24 hours.

The labor unions continued to functlion, but they, too, were
reorganized.

(10 v¥X) The Party was disbanded and a new Commmmist Perty was organized.

{10 e)

(10 &)
(10 e)

(10 £)

(10 g)

(10 h)

(10 1)

On the 254%h we organized the revolutionary workers' couneil
en the punzta.

The blue poliee was disbanded. Many of the pollcemen jolned
the Bevolution.

The AVH wag eompletely wiped cut in many places.

The old# courts eeased funetioning. Revolutlicnary workers'
courts were organized in their stead,

The army «disbanded too. A great many of them went over to the
Revolution. In cother places the soldiers wers sent home with
arms and all,

The Imre llagy government took over the direction of the state
affairs.

Local councils were destroyed. Chalrmen of the eouncils were
exaecuted n many loecalities, Party secretaries, too, found a
similar fate.

Churches cxperienced a sudden revival, Mindszenty was freed
from prisoa.
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I don't know,

They were the revolutiocnary workers' coumeills, the labor
unions we:e reorganized., The Soclal Democratie Party, the
Peasant Party, smd other parties were organized smew smd began
funetioning,

We were listening to the radio, we learned of the mood of the

nation, and we quiekly erganized the revolutionary workers' eouneci _

We did this with the thought that the Imre Nagy govermment must
be strengthened in every possible way, and in whatever it dees
we mast swpport it,

An internitional workers®' movement would have emerged. The

idea of kingidom did not plesse the nation. We wanted to irntroi-
duee in Hungary the U.S.A, system.

I should ¢nly like to say that there will be a change in Hungary
yet. The system which was and still is in Hungary esmnot remain
for lomg. Oaly artifieial foree keeps 1t now going. I am
quite preparad to help and assist with my whole family a movement
which the U,S5.A, may wish to organize for the purpose of
destroying that system.

I think it was a useful thimg. If it had net been for the
Russians, the Rikosi-system would have vanished campletely.

The Revolutlon did succeed. Only the second Russian offensive
and Kédar vere able to topple it. The regular Russiam force
which was stationed in Hyngary was besten. In seme cities,

|
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notsbly in Sztalinvares and in Szekszard, the insurgemts
destroyed a mmber of Russian tanks with the help of high-voltage
wires.
(11 ¢) Yes, we expecteéd help, we expected helpr in great quantities.
We expected military equipment. We would not have needed any
soldiers. A: Mth:li“ bombers would have been sufficient.
These would have REXESE the newly-arriving troops at bay.
(11 a) The Revolwiimm happened in Hungary because the Hungarians believed
in the pousinhllity of destroying the system of the East. The
Russians wanied to steal all cur uraniun cre.
(11 e) I belleve that he will be set free. The people would like to
see this, tos.
i1 1) KX Ama Fethly was also an important figure.

laleter - he was on the people's side. He must be a very
good man, H2 did a splendld job at Kilian and he courageously
stood on the people's side.

Kird'y == I never heard of him,

Aeze . =~ he 1s against the Russians. He rightfully belongs
to the revolutionary group., He wag a Commmist for a long time
and eseaptd Wwith a great amount of documents.

Imkacs -- I never heard of him,

Tildy =- Af he only could have remained in power, then we
would never have had o Russian system. The same thing sapplies
to Arpad Szatasits.
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Dudss =~ I never heard of him.
I would rank them in the following way: I¥EN first, youthj
second, workers; third, sgrieultural workers; fourth, intel-
lectualsy fifth, soldiers. I don't kaow of any irresponsible
elements.
Yy younger son escaped to Austria in the begirming of Decenber
1956, My colder son started out, too, in the direction of Austria
and he was captured on Deecember 13. Es was taken to Budapest
and was held there until the begimning of Jamuwary, 1957. He
was eventuslly released and the AVH brought him back home.
On Jarmary 17 he eseaped again, to Yugoslavia. We followed him
on Japuary 25, also in the direction of Yugoslavia. We were
eaptured by the Hungarian fromtier guards between Baja ahd
Rasztina. I had some momey and whisky with me, but the frontier
gusrds would not take any of that stuff, Finnlly they let us
cross the frontier. .
I wanted to come to the U.S.A. for a very long time. We now .1
had a possibllity to escope and I knew we were eompromised
enough, sc we declded to IEX flee,
I discussed 1y plans with my neighbor, with my brother-in-law,
with a German Hugarian, and with a few coachmen on the state farm,.
I wanted to flee already in 1950, beeause my brother and I
hed beater up two Russian soldiers snd the poliesmen arrested
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us and gave us 2 terrific beating in Mohdcssziget. They called
as dirty Ameriean imperialist chained T

I experimented slresdy in 1939 with emigrating to the U.S.A.
My younge:® brother and I started out in that year and we got
as far as Vienna. There they arrested us for illegal entry
and shipped us bask to Hungary,

The Yugoslav border was sbout 30-35 kilcmeters frem our
puszta. /s aimumwmsnuilutu:o,&mi
the Yugos av border and Yugoslav guards were already walting
for us, They teok us to Sambor. We were there for seven days.
Then they took us to Maeedonia, to a camp near Bitelj., We
were in that eamp for three-and-az-half months, That eamp was
shut off coamyletely and the Yugeslavs did not permit any
delegations o visit that eamp. Onee we were told ef a Belglan
recrulting delegation, operating im Osijek. We expressed ocur
desire to ser them and so the Yugoslavs ook us to Osijek.

From there w: went to another eamp in Brestanlea, Slovenia.
From Brestanleca we were brought back to Osijek to be presented
to a South Ameriean delegation. This was on May 28. Frenm
Ogijek we were taken to Geroveo, in Dalmatis, where we stayed
for more than two momths., There the U.S.A. delegation called
us In on /ugast 23 and we proceeded swiftly to Vienna., And
noew we are hore, Our som lived in a youth camp at Bela Criva
in Vojvodina and he was not permitted to join us until he
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reached 1€ years of age. Fortunately he was not teo far away
frem his 18th birdsy and he was permitted to join us later.
Ky other son escaped to Austria and he went to Canada same
monthe age and iz now living with my sister there who has a
tebaceo fzrm there.

The Yugoslavs committed a great erime in that they handed
back to Humgary all unaccompanied children who were below
14 years cf age.
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In 1945, I received a few holds of land as a result of the land
reform, rem 1945 to 1947 I was a tobsceo-planter (Osdchany
termel8), Prior to 1945, I was s cowherd in the employ of
Janos Unger, who lesged a large traet of land from the bishoprye
of Pees. The lsmd was situated sround Mohdcssziget. Even prior
to that, [ worked as a ecachman,

I recoived 6% holds of land (hold is a Hungarian agrieultural
unit sligitly lerger than the acre) in lichasssziget in 1945,
I kept anl cultivated thisz land until 1950, when I declded to
give 1t uw)> snd cbandon it altogether; the situation was simply
unbearabl:, I decided to go to & state farm in Mohdcmsziget
snd seek amploynent there. The state farm I refer to subraeced
gsome 4-5070 holds and it was called Sz:badsdgtanya. liore than
a thousanl people worked there,
My oceupa:icn iz a cowherd and agrieultural lsborer. Frem
1950 to 1357 I worked as a covherd,
Up until 1945 I wes a coachman snd laoter a cowherd in the employ
of Janos Jnger. From 1945 to 1950 I was an independent farmer,
having received 6% holds of land as 2 result of the 1945 land
reform, In 1950 I gave up my land and entered the Szsbadsig-
tanya stase farm at Mohdessziget., There I worked wmtil 1954,
In 1945 I transferred to Karclymajor, smother state farm, and
stayed there wdil 1955. In 1955 I treansferred again o
Borbelypuszta, still another state farm, and stayed there till
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August 1955, when the farm director fired me. From Amt25i955,
WIS to Jemuary 21, 1957, I worked on the Bataszek-leperdpuszta
state farm,

While in the eploy of Janos Unger (umtil 1945) I worked as a
coachman :nd later as a eowherd. As a soachman my duties
included sowing, transporting, and manuring the fields, and
trangperting the grain, As a cowhexrd I was responsible for a
gertain murber of cows, to feed them, to elean them, to milk
them, to take good care of the eow stables and to drive the
animals ovt to pasture.

As an indepandent farmer (1945-1950) I performed all kinds
of farming work., Right after 1945 I began to grow and to
cultivate tolaaceo. This did not last long, however, for I beeame
a (nycmatékos) farmer, (Interviewer's mote: "nyomatékos” is
a term used 1n Commmnist Mungary to signify a farmer who mst
eonform to agricultural directives and must X8 grow such erops
ag the government direets him.,) They told me what to grow and
what not to grow. If someone did not abide by their directives,
the poliee came and took the offender awszy, The forced deliveries
were very high, the taxes beecame unbearsble, and I just could
not stamd it any longer, I worked lilce a herse and yet I did
not see ary results, I decided to give up my farm, I soon
found out that I eould not mell it, however, and the goverrment
would not take 1t baek, elther., I did not want any money for it,
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I Just warted to get rid of it any way at all, Finally I simply
sbandcned it anéd sought employment on = nearby state fam
(Szabadsastenya, 1950). During 1951, the Szsbadssgtanya state
farm took sare of my property, when, tecwards the end of 1951,

I was lucicy enough snd was able to get it transferred to my
brother. My brother asecepted my former property just in order
%o preven: the suthorities from taking me and my family back to
the farm T éid not want, Later my brother, toe, was foreed to
give up iadependent farming and he entered a TSzCs ecooperative.

From 1950 to 1957 I worked ss a eowherd (fejosgulyss) in
various state farms; my first employment was at Szabadaggtanys,
then I weat to Kdrolymajor, snd later to Borbolypuszta,

In Borbolypuszta I had a quarrel with a brigade leader and
lopt my Job as a result; the farm direetor, = former AVH offiecer,
ealled me into his offiee, took ocut his two pistols, snd begen
to interrogete me. He called me a dirty imperiaslist smarehiast
and told ne that he would take me to the AVH prison, vhere I
would vanish for ever, if I did not have all those children.

I was fired instantansously end had to leave the farm in thst
very howr. But in my workbock it was noted that I left the jJeb
with the fam-direetor's permission., This happemed in Awgust 1955
On the 27th of the name month I got a Job, sgain as a cowherd,
on another gtate farm, this cne called Bitugék;hpoﬁpuna.

(The interviewer here asked the following questiom:

Could you please tell me all you know about your last plaee of
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employment:? This is the reply:)

The plose was called S —

(state faym)., The farm eamprised sbout 3300 holds of arsble
land and pasture. It employed sbout JEIE 5-600 men. These
were stealy workers, permenent employees of the farm, living
right on the farm's premises. To this permanent labor foree
eontrastusl day laborers were added, recruited fram nearby
villages, who worked seasonally as the need zrose.

The {'arm was directed by the farm director, the party
secretary, the chief agronomist, snd an assistant agroncmist,
and about ten brigade leaders. Each brigade leader commanded
a labor foree of about 40 - 100 men.

The (irvetor warvilEEEE- le was sbout 33-34 years
0ld. The Coammists trained him a eouple of years fer his job,
but he di<¢ not Imow very much sbout farming. The workers
eenstantly had to advise him how to do this and that anéd why
an operation should be performed this wixy and not the other.
The directar was responsible for everytiing on the farm, ine
eluding tke operastion of the large farm-office., In thes offiee
worked the chief bookkeeper, the treasurer, the aiminiatrator,
two timekeepors (berelszamoldk), twe stenographers, and the
party seeretary.

The party seeretary was the farm-dlrector's assistant when
the director was not on the farm, in reality, however, it was
the party secretary who gave orders to everyone, including the
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IR farm-director. The seeretary's namé?uu“—

He was from Budapest by origin, sbout t'.t':aﬂ years old, a former
menipexr of the AVH foerce. The chlef agronomist was a very
competent man., He studied in pre-war Hungary, and was about
bhi-}5 years 01d, His assitant Wes a young man, about 24 years
old, who did net know muech sbout anything.

The dirscter's monthly pay was 2450 forints, The party
pecretary received ZHEBEEX 2650 forints, the chilef beookkeeper
1700 forints, the chief agronomist 2200 forinmts, his sssistant
1600 forints, the two stenographers received 1400 forints each.

Ther: was also a veterinarian, Ie had a car and he took
care of two state fgrms, His pay was 2400 forints per month.

Abouf; 600 holde of the state farm was lald aside for the
cultivation of HHEXY wheat, of which sbout 60 percent was
covered by weede of all E¥EE sorts; another 500 holde was used

for the eultivation of corn, snother 1C0 holds for the cultivation

of turnip, and another 300 holds was used for the cultivation
of animal f{odder.

There ware sbout 350 cows on the farm, asbout 3000 sl sheep,
about 500700 hoge, and gbout 140 draught horses.

The County Agricultursl Section of Szekszard made the
decisions on what the farm is to produce and how much of it.
The actual d2terminetion of where to produce wheat, cofn,
turnip, etie., that 18 to say, the geographical allocation, was
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the responsibility of the chief agrondmist. The chief agronomist,
the party secretary, ardl the director also had the joint
responsiblility of assigning the brigade leaders to the various
sections of farm production. The brigade leaders were rotated
yearly, one year supervising this labor force and this operation,
the next yesr another. The brigade leaders did not work
themselves,

let us row consider the H¥ERIEE dalry farm sestion of this
state farn, Work in this section started at 3 a.m. and ended
at 8 p.m., Cur first task in the morning was to carry out the
manure. 'This done, we sersped the cows, fed them, made prepar-
ations for the milking, milked them, snd fed them at the same
time. On2 worker was assigned twelve cows, and he was responsible
for them in every respect. Our responsibilities also ineluded
the calving (borjuziis). The morning operation, ineluding milking,
had to be dcne by 8 a.m. At 8 a.m., we drove the cows out to
the pasture for grazing and remained there till 4 p.m. The
pasturage consisted of asbout 50-60 holds. Three hundred cows
grazed there, together with the entire sheep flock., At 4 p.m.,
Wwe drove “he snimals in again, tied them to their manger,
cleaned out the mangers and watered the cows., Thereafter we
fed them again, kept the stsble in good order, carried in the
straw, and made prepersticns for the second milking., KN
We milked th2 cows sgaln gt 5 p.m. Milking had to be finished

by T p.m.
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The work day ended around 8 p.m. We left the stasbles and
the nightwaichman took over. Breakfast or lunch or supper period
we did not have, we ate as we worked. We had our lunch out in
the open. Four of us, my wife, the two older sons, and I worked,
80 the cooking was done by my l2-year old dsughter., She cooked
and brought our lunches out to the pasture.

The cofs yielded from 1% to 22 liters of milk per day. The
average yleld per cow was 6-7 liters of milk per day. Other
farm yield awerages were a8 followe: wheat 8-900 kilograms per
hold, corn XX 800-1000 kgs per hold, turnip 30,000 kgs per hold,

The machine station was equipped with 18 tractors (four
used for hailing, six of the Kormos-type, six Zetar and two
Universal). There were also three combines, four harvesting
mgchines, wd numerous lesser equipments.

The avorsge worker's pay was 800 forinte. This was my
montly salary tooe. To this I received 450 forints as family
cemplement (esalsdi pétlek). My monthly gross earnings then
were I¥EN 1250 forints., My wife performed the same duties and
received 500 forinte per month. Our sons received 600 forints
each per month. The family also was aseigned a 1200 square yard
homestead, Tor the use of which we paid €0 forints per year.

Our living quarters consisted of one room (five by four
meters), a <itchen (two by four meters), snd a storsge room
(two by thrse meters). We lived there the nine of us. We had
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our own furniture, Esch bed was oceupied by two people. The
baby slept nlone in a erib. We pald 30 forints rent per month
for our quarters and 60 forints per month for eleetricity.

We had to buy our own food, of cous=e,

Children were assigned 160 kgs of wheat per year, those past
16 years of ﬁ:, if working, were emllocated 200 kgs of wheat
per year. larents received 220 kgs of wheat per yemr. We paid
97 forinte per 100 kga of wheat.

We used to go to the city of Baja where we bought cur elothing
in =2 second-hald clothing mart. We usually managed to buy one
puit or drers per year per person,

On our honmestead we produced potatoesz snd other vegetshles,
and we also kept chicken, dueks, and 16 pigs of varying ages.

We were not permitted to keep FEESE . Forced deliveries there
were none, snd we were only regquired to piy 12 forints per month
s income tex (kereseti add). Ve subsecrived to the Szabad Nep,
paging 12 foerints per month for it, and we also pald 31 forints
union dues rer month (ten, seven, seven, zeven).

The stste farm was operated chiefly by steady workers who
lived right on the farn, Varicus seasonal farm operations were
done by day-laborers from nelghborfing villages and to this force
at times fanily members, mostly women and older children, of
steady workers were added. Workers on the turnip fields were pald
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8-16 forints; those working on the cotton fields aversged
S5=Tw18-22 forints. Day lsborers ¥l worked in norms and were
paid accordingzly. They worked 12 hours a day.

State farms were organized in 1849, Ve became employees
of a state farm iIn 1951 becsuse we did not want to become members
of aTSzCe. Life on a state farm was much better than life of
an independtent farmer and better even than the life of a TSzCs
memiber. Thers was less terror, we experienced less fesr and
fright snd there were no forced deliveries. From the point of
view of produstion results, private lsndholdings were far more
suceessful than either state farms or TSZCsg's, and state farms
aurpasned the TS3zCe cooperatives.

The state farm had its own warehouses, At harvest time,
the seed needad for sowing the following year and per capitsa
allotments for foed for the farm population were retalned at the

state farm snd the sufirplus was shipped IN to govermment warehouses.

The money to realirzed was placed in a bank account, from which
the farm drew menthly fixed amounts to pay the salaries of the
workers. Iayments were made once a month, usually around the
%enth or the twelfth.

The steep flock was in an exceptlenally bad shape. There was

no fodder ivallable snd the shepherds were not professional people,

they d4id net lmow how to take care of them and how to heal them
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if they got sick; 30 to B0 percent of them were sick or died,

The sheep were regularly sheared and the wool sold to textile
factories. Sick sheep were sold to the state buteher stores (Husert
- osEEE

The farm bulldings consisted of stables, = :nlnhiz statl
and sdjoining machine shop, a big field kitehen were GM i
prepared th2ir foed, a warehouse for wheat, other warehouses for
corn $¥EE (zér€k), living quarters of stesdy workers, (families),
living quarters for single men, ¥ where 20-25 people slept in
one room, and the administration building with all the offieces.
These bulldings were old structures which the Cammunists inherited
together with the farm from the Catholic Church. To these a few
new structures were added after 1949; there was a nice house
where the director, the party secretary, the wsrehouse men Il
and the chisf meechanic lived. (They were all single people).
There wWas aaother house bullt for the brigsde leaders. There was
et11l another house, in which the sgronomist lived. The Commnists {
also built two new stables, a slaughterhouse, a culture home, and
a dalry,

The arza of the living quarters was extremely dirty, with
weed growinz sll around. MNsnure was wnzmau, ite foul amells
penetrating every room and dwelling. Our rooms adjoined the stable,

the culture homs was built at the end of one of the stables, with the

directoris housa located some 100 meters or es Turther EVEY -
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Further out, the fields were practically covered with weeds. This was
especially visible when the weedflowers began to blossom. You could see
yellow weedflowers no matfer wvhere you turned.

We did have plenty of manure, dut they always manursd those lands which
did mot need any. The stnte farm also used chemical fertilizers, but those
in cherge of the fertilizing did not Imow how %o do it. They did more damage
than good by srerspplying some of the cli:idal-.

We received our waterr supply from a well. To thie well a motor was
attached whica pumped the water and brought it to the surface.

We aleo nad sn elementary school after 1950 on the Puszta. Wes had s
woman teacher coaducting the first four grades of the elsmemtary schoocl. In
Dolina, a little hemlet aome three kilcgsters sway, (population 150), there
was another elemsntary school, with gredes five, six, seven and eight. Children
from there ard from other places came to us to a%tend the first four grades,
and our children walked to Dolina to attend the upper grades.

The nearsst village, Veménd, with s population of 2000, was sbout five
kilomaters away, and the nearest cliy, Bataszek, population around 6000, was
about 7 kme éistant. The nesrest railrosd statlon was at Bdtassek, and the
nearest larger centers, Baja and Ssekszard, were 206 kme away from us. Fece
was 30 kms distaat.

The farzs had & grea’ many difficulties with its machines. Most of the
newer mechines ware the products of the€onomic-plan srs, and they broke down
very often. The :ig machines, of Cermen and American meke, wers remarkebly
sturdy and stronz and well built.
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Part of the {HIE milk that we produced was skimmed and pasteurised right
there at the farm dalry end was shipped away in 25-liter containers. Scme of
it wae only skimmod at the farm snd was Etransported to Vémend for pasteurization.
We were mot allownd to use any of the milk ourselves. Only children under &
and people over 60 could get half a liter of milk psr day. The latter group
orly on a physiclan's recommendation.

We raceivoad each yesr 1200 square yards of lend which we could cultivate
ag HI our homeiteand. The location varied from yeer to year. We used this land
for planting potatoes and vegetables. A tractor from ths machine station
ploughed the land for us, a service for which we paid 87 forints per year. If
we yanted to soll some of ocur produce, we had to sell dirsctly to the state farm,
at maximized pvicos. We were gleoc allowed to keep pigs, and to fatten tham,
btut we were no’ alowed to slaughter them, exzcept by specisl permission. In
that case we wore required to surrender a atated gmount of lard and meat.

(2 1) It was an averige-size state farm, as state farmes went in Humgary. I canmaot
fsy that it was efficlent. Its efficisncy was meybe 40 percemt. The chiaf
agronomist, a Jow, was g Very gcood man and an expert leadsr, tut they did not
give him peopls %o work with. Thosswho did work were very poorly pnid. Once
the day labore:’s loudly demanded more money. But the AVH came out and they
were quieted dnwm. Coachment (kocsisok) received BOO forints per month,
shepherds got '"00 to 800. Day laborers from the peighboring villages got
17 forinta per day just before ths Revolution. In the beginning of 195€ their
dally wage was 8 Forints, which was later raised to 11.650.

(3) I liked xy job very mmch,
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I liked the animals, I enjoyed milking the cows and tsking care of them.

I did not like owr low salaries. I alec disliked the fact that we, who lnew
our business well, were ordered around by our superiors who did not have the
slightest ides #X sbout the trads. Hoedless %o pay, at the end everything was
&mummunmuum.muwm

My last Job was somewhat Detter them my previous job at other state farms, Decause
it was more quiet end more tranguil.

¥e milked by hand. Our equipment was rather deficient. We 414 mot have bdrooms,
for instance. If we complained, the reply invariably was: "He who does not
1ike it here, let him pack his belongings and let him gol?

Our quarters were physically comnected with the stable. As & matter of fact,
the whole tuilding used to be a stable until a part of it was comverted into
living quarters.

I worked from 3 a.m., o 8 p.n.

We worked every single day, seven days a week.

Tes, there was overtime. I often worked two hours over a dey. They paid me
1.60 frts per hour,

Yes, there were holidays, three days a year. (August 20, May 1, April 4). But
we liad to work even on these holidays. We received 16 frts extra for such days.
Yes, there were pald vacations, 12 days per year, but we could leave our jJob
enly if we could find someone else to do ofir work. If we did find someons, we
got only 50 percent of our regulsr pey during vacation time. If we did not find
a substitute, we did not get compensated for our ¥ extra work, nor did we get

the vacation.
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Yes, lateness wra punished by deductions from pay, bR disciplinary action, anml
after the third cccurrence by firing.

Our milicing norm was an average of 8§ liters of milk per day per cow. We never
reached this noim because the cows did not bave that much milk and decaunse we
did not have the right fodder to feed the cows with. We fod them with straw,
20 percent of the tuwmip was frozen.

I had the paid lnlid.aa;u, I had medical insuremce, and I only pald 50 percent
of the medicine.

We wers all allle down there.

Thhse wers farming poople and people of ths pussts.
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(Lb) People didn't get along very well. The relations with superiors
were not too good.

(Le) I did meet cne of the h#f?ﬂdﬂ- leaders occasgionally.

(4d) I discussed politics with the entire péss= fd.- o

(4e) There definitely was such a difference. Party members were told
about everything, they raceivn&decorﬂtiona., and they got more pay
and longer vacations,

I engaged in so much extra work. I was in charge of the
calving, They were supposed to parﬁgﬁ forints per delinry;
and I delivered more than 25 calves par year, I was also first
in the milkings, and I did so many other things outside of
my regular assignment, but they did not pay me, I lost 3,000~
h;Du;;fbrintn annually thereby.

(41) They couldn’t do anything with the union. The peasants wouldmik
pay their dues for a few months and then ik they would stop. I
have in mind the seascnal workers from the adjoining villages. The
steady workers were, of course, forced to pay their dues. Union
meetings were held bi-monthly. These were always conducted on a
Communist basis, with much denunciation of the USA,

(41) I never hea~d of a shop triangle.

(L1) Yes, there was a great deal of such interference. They kept pushe-
ing us; "le%'s go, this is the way you have to do that, not the
other way., The Russian system 1s very good, we cannot go according
te the West", etc., ete. The administration put its nose into
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everything. They kept reminding us that "™we are not living under
a Vestern system now", and "this is not the Horthy regime" and
"shere is ncthing better in the world skm than the Hussian way".

(4n) The good kaders were those who were mgmbera of the Party.

(4p) The Party secrotary always went srounf with his uniform on. The
warehouse men was a grand infermer, Thers were several others like
him, too.

(5) I¢ was impoesible to change jobs. If somebody still insisted on
changifg jots, he was simply fired. In such instances the word
"Eﬂem)/“s'e'ﬂ“ was noted in the warkur'aﬁbuuk. meaning arbi=
trarilyf to describe the way of his separation from employment,
Such a perscn was unable to secure himself another Job for the
naxt six months except in the coal mines,

(5b) If I had been “ree to chose ay own work, I would still have done
what I was cctually dolng., I was in love with my work, it was
in the family Gradition.

(5¢) No, not at &ll,

(5d) People were trying very hard to get ahead. But they did not succeed.
If somebody did get somewhere, he automatically became a kulak or
an hpaﬂ@é.uﬁ or a F%i:t who was™bent"on ruling others. Iim

(5e) If I lived undar those circumstances, I would have liked to have
a good life, to improve my family's living standards, to buy
clothes, I would have liked to have lived near a city and go to the
movies occanionally., In my free time I would have liked to go to
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Canada to visit my relatives there.
(5¢) We did discuss these problems at length at home; we decided to
leave the country, to emigrate, to work, to purchase land, and to
xkyx stick together with the family.
(5g) No, I would not have wanted my children to continue the same job
I did; if 7 had the opportunity I would have liked to educate
my yvounger children.
(6) e have lived a simple, ordinary sort of life, I uas not able
to buy the gort of clothes for the members of my fani:y that I
really wanted to., I was forced to spend all the money 1 had on
foody and food was very expensive.
(6c) We were jus’ about getting bY.
(6d) Yes, I was oxploited. No matter how much we worked, we could not
pﬂaaiblz ge's more than did the Party secretary and the others.
We were exp..oited by the state. The state, in turn, was exploited
by Soviet Russia, A man was not able to make the kind of money
he would hare liked to, he had to produce those things, and in such
a waygyas the government prescribed it, and whatever a man produced
was eventua.ly subject to forced delivery. A man was simply not
able tu live the kind of life worthy of a human being. A man
was not able to speak his mind, he was not even permitted to mention
hias Westarn sympathies, We all knew what the VWest was like and
yet we were not permitted to talk about it at all,
(7a) I - Idon't know, II - 9;50& per year. III = 9;50& forints per year
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(7v) Ours was an income in the lower medium bracket, They just didn's
pay for what a man worked. If somebody earned over and M‘Iﬂ his

category, tlhey simply did not pay him. i
(7d) Four members of my family were working.
(8) Form is filled out.
(9) Dwelling conditions were not too gocd. The building in which we
dwelt was moist, We did have gas and electricity but no running
water,
(9a) The amount of time spent waiting in gueues varied from cne and a half

f'vae
to two; to :::cxgl.n:u to six houra per occasion., We waited for such

items as broad, lard, reat, and ration cards. Very often we waited
completely in vain; the first fifty people got something, the re-
mainder got nothing at all,

(9b) It happened more often that items were not available than the
other way a2:ound, Those who wwere close %0 the fire, received
something, “he others g suffered., Colonial wares were not availe-
able at all. I,

(9e) Ye spent on tha average four to five hundred forints per week on |
fa% food, 'le purchased such items as potatoes, lard, fish, fmix

fruit and other items,in government stores, Ue purchased our
clothing itams in secord hand or junk stores, Black marketing was
eradicated lately. The state itself was engaged in black marketing
(the prices were much too high).
(9d) There was a change from 1953 on, Beginning with the regime of Imre
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Nagy focd items were more abundant, but they were m very expensive,
too, Up until 1953 we used Indian corn for cooking and for baking
our bread. Bread was very expensive, running at times as high as
six forints per kilogram, The quality of the bread was very poor.
If somebody complained about these conmditions, he was picked up
and imprisoned as an enemy of the state, After the coming of

Imre Nagy to> power, all this became somewhat better; the price

of bread than was three forints per kﬂ.ngramf

In the Hakoai era the production was decreasing,m and the standard
of living was decreasing,and we were of the opinion that this could
not pessibly ge on very long like that.

It was not a healthy dovelopment at all,

They sent out to the state farm people who had no idea whatsoever
how te run a farm, They spent all their time on polit#ing and
kept on talking about the tastern culture, If something went
wrong as a result of the ignorance or stupidity of the administra-
tors, they always blamad us, the workers, for the bad results and
we were accused of sabotage.

The economic systom and situation was fairly pgood at that time,

I am not saying that I was in love with that system, things did net
function as they should have in those days either. But all in all
it was satisfactory. ile had no need whatsoever for the introduction

syatexxx of the Russian aysﬂﬁgl
The econemic situation was improving in that peried. Things were
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better then before. In Hungary pecple started to introduce

USA methods 1n that perlod. The only trouble was that the

Germans came in,

The changes in the economy =g after 194, represented a deteri=
oration, The right of free spesch was taken away from the people.
The living standards suffered a sudden and marked decline.

e, I di¢ not hear any such discusslions,

They bepgan permltting pecple here and thire to open private stores
ard sheps, This, howaver, was on a vary small scale,and people
were taxed cut of axistgggg;SHMany an xrt ertisan did not even
hother %o tske out his Tmxmmme and he preferred %o go %o a state
farm and =rork thers,

Things wers pregbty much the same, Ia 1546, there was a very small
improvement but it was berely noticeadle., "There was a noticeable
inproverent in the relations with Tugsslavia.

Matarial conditiens weras very important in this connection. Thin;
however, was by no means the orly, or the most importantycomplaint
we had., PFecple opposed the entire regime as such,

For mes perscnally material cnqééﬁitinns were extremely impeortant.
The improverens of material corditlors for my family wes my highest
goul,

The destrusticn of the roglpe vas our bighest aim. The ordinary
person did rot evea care to live and lemger. They promised every-

thing, but they gave ws nothing &% all. “he people did not care




(11le)

HO, 160 nAW INTERVIEW SECTION W LP Pa B0

for the Eastern system and they wanted to have no part in it.
The issue of living standards became a secondary issue with us,
our most lmpertant aim was the tumbling dewn of the regime.

This was equally true for the factory workers, fafha miners,and
forr the agricultural laborers,




(1)

(1a)
(1b)
(14)
(le)
(2)

(2a)

(2¢)

(2d)

(2e)

(3)
(&)

NO., 160 TA™ INTERVIEW SIC).0N 8 LP Pe bl

I went only to the alementary school and even that L did not
finish,

I attended school from 1923 to 1925,

I attended mxxamkk parochial school.

No.

Not: applicable,

The situation of my family when I was a child simply did mi& not
permit that I continue my education.

I would have like to finish at least the eightli-year elemantary
course,

My 1ife in all probablity would have besen different had I finished
elementary scheol. I would probably have beccme a skilled indus-
trial laborsr.

I was an above average student,

Generally quaking; I should say that in those days I did have
about the same eppertunity as most everybody else, There were
very mangh?uor peﬁgigtgpen, It was a necessity for me that I; tno;
work with on a large estate, and, since there were no schools
on these eastates then I just couldn't mumzkk continue my education,
Not applicable,

Whatever they did in schools went according to the BEastern aystem.
The children were being indectrinated into the Eastern system. It
was absolutely forbidden to even mention the parish priest in scheol
We who went to parochial scheeols certainly did not learn anything
bad from the prieat or nuns,
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In my opinion it was not education at all what they were doing in
schools. Children were not taught respect, or how to behave them=
EE'%E well, They were taught only barbarism in scheols,
My father was living in Dusnak and was engaged in curing animals,
He was in greater demand than the veterinarian. This activity
represented his = livilihood. My father used to be a shepherd
up until 1934,
My father retired already before 1945, He was lLiving a% home and
we also helped him from time to time. He is still living.
My father was xsk satisfied with his lot and he lived honestly and
worked honeorably all his life, He §mow resides with my brother-in-
law and Wmh= he has some two or three holds of land which my
brother-in-law helps cultivate,
My father had no schooling at all. He was a shepherd all his
life.
No.
Wa‘:;:-;’thar better off nor worse off than others. We were some-
where in the middle,
Thare were eight boys and a girl im our family. Altogether there
wers elsven of use
wo of them died, the rest of the family members are still living.
Now I am here in theﬁt.atas, my sister is in Canade, all the others
are living in Hungary.
None ef my relatives were living with us.
My social origin hurt me more than it helped me in the past ten
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yvears, If I may expreas it in percentages it hurt me about 70

percent,

(6) Yes, I was married.

(6a) My wife worked in the same place, doing the same kind of work I
did.

{6b) We were married in 1937.

(6¢) We have seven children,

(6d) 1y oldest child was 17 years old in 1954,

(7) Our relations were good. Ve understood each other. We were workin
The only trouble was that we should hav: earned much more than what
we actually did, They did not pay for cur work., It was impopsible
%o save, Even 1f someone had besn able to save something, they
gurely would have taken kim it away fromr him in that awful world,

(8) Tes, we did talk politics in ocur family., We discussed boththe
Weatern and the Eastern world,

(8a) 1 always told my family not to learm anything from,zmk nor to ace
cept anything.nﬁﬁftha Eastern system, I told them to refuse to
accent anything from the “astern system,even if they were forced
to do s6. I always Sold my family how it used to be in the old
system. I always denouuced the Eastern system and tried to incule
cate into my children tha precpepts of the Western world, We al-
way8 had a longing desire to go West. Vew, fipally, we succesded.

(9) We did have trouble, on wvarious occasgions, with our children over
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their education. Jometimes they were sick and they were not able

to earn any money, or at least not as much as normally., Our lot
was a very hard one,

Their friends were all young people., A girl from the pulSZ r‘t—-
joined my scn,and they together wanted te cross the Austrian bor-
de:;. but they were arrested, On the 26th of December, they were
finally »=x released m and were brought back to a&'.faszcﬂt

On the 17th of Jamary my son escaped again, this time to Yugosla-
via, Another of my sons crossed the Austro-§Ee Hungarian border

on December 8, He succeeded in emigrating to Canada and now is
living with my sister and brothere-in=law,

Politics dic not enter the picture of thelr lives, I did not
permit them to follow the Eastern politics., They accepted this

and I always taught them about the Western side. Others constant-
ly wanted to enlist them in various activities but I refused to let
them go. We ware constantly listening to the Western radiocs, The
Eastern radio was always telling %iaa Liogg We did not like that
at all, Ve did listen to music from both sides but that was all.x
No,

Yes, there was such a competition. We cid not permit this competitic
to become a:?fer:tiﬁe;m- There were attempts to force our child-
ren to attend this sort of an activity =nd that sort of an activity
but, since we iknew that if they did go to these activities they
would be inluenced in the wrong direction, we simply did not permit
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them to leava the house, We kept them home and they were work-
ihg.
Our relations were good and they still are good to this day.
Yes,
We spoke about daily issues and issues which affected our every
day xkfex lives.
No. My parents taught me only goed things and I always accepted
their advice, .
There was no problem in that connectlion either,
There was a very good understanding between us. The only trouble
was that life was very hard. In 1955 my wife and two of my sons
began to qﬂ;k and wera then helping me, PFPrior to that time, I
was working alone and I had no help from them., 2 Lifa]? those

oo
et to

days was extremely hard. Very often we had not enough
eat. That was a bitter, gruesome life. The Revolution, too, broke
Exe out prquisuly because of that. They kept promising us every-
thing but they never kept their word. ZEven axim aside from these
grievances, the Hungamyizn nztion simply did not need this Eastern
type of system.
We were very clese. There was no trouble there, It was the
children who proposed that we flee the country, I myself was
afraid to move with such a large family., When Yugoslavia proclaimec
that it would give asylum to refugees, we took a train., We knew

‘J-
the HungagYugcslav border well, We started out with the expectatior
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that we would bte able to continue our journey from Yugoslavia
to the United States. The}ﬂlnighty did help us in that after
all,

(14b) More than half of the families we knew did not understand each
other. The ﬁm laborers were very much oppressed. They were
never giver a day off, The radio kept reminding us that ne cne
should turn tc the West for solutions, bacause solutions that
might come from the West are all bad, paradise is in the East,
We, on the other hand, kept telling cursalves that we would pre=
fer "bad things of the Weat™, rather than the "gocd things of the
East and peradise”,

(l4e) I simply did not have leisure time. At times one of my family
members would substitute for me with the animals and would take
care of the animals when they were graszing. The five days of
vacation I had coming were always taken up with work on our own
little homestead,

(14e) Two years &go the children were in school, my wife was at home and
I myself wes working in the stable, I was working fifteen hours
a day. In the last two years we all worked,togetiwer and we all
worked togethar,

(14f) I would have liked to wisit my parents and my brothers and sisters,
Unfortunately I never had the possibility to do se.

(l4g) No. See answars to previous questicns.

(15) Family ties have loosened completely.
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Not even farily members could trust one another., If there was

a slip of the tongue, the car would stop in the middle of the

night and the person thus compromised would be taken away.
People were often taken away even though they did nothing wrong.
I know innumerable such cases where people I used to work with
tegebie” wer'e taken away for nothing, just because they happened
to say that the Western system was better than the Eastern. Some
of these peopls were taken to the mines, some others were done
away with,
Family members are more dependent now than before on each other.
Many children do grow aimrangud from their parents.
This is equally true both of town and country. The process of
estrangemen’; besgan in the towns and was exported to the country
also,
Yes, there wera such changes; parents were inable to rear their
children in a way they would have liked to.

There were very many divorced people, There were others who hanged

themselves or shot themselves in their desperation.

I don't know.

8
The marrying age of boys is from 18-25 and that of girls from 16=-21,

Courtship and marriage patterns certainly did cﬂﬁd&a a great deal.,
Thes¢ have saken entirely new, different forms, People simply
aren't able to engage in the old ways of courting. People have

neither money nor time and they are desperate.

—
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I don't know,

The authorities before 1945 were more strict than the Communists
after 1948, If the people made out to be dumb and acted stupidly,
that was just as bad as if thev did just exactfly the opposite.
90 percent of the population longs for those conditions prevail-
ing before 1945. They wish they could live in the pre-World War
IT world. Unfortunately, this is not possible,

The lot of illegitimate children was much better before.

The status of women has changed insofar amr that they were obliged
to go and work. They were preaching equslity. In reality women

were obliged tov go to work, it was a necessity to do so, That was

not the case before.

This I think is a bfls/ thing. It is not for the women to work
outside of the house, Let there be such a system where the male
is able to earn sufficient amount of money to take care of his
whole family., On the state farms today all women are obliged to
work at least 80-90 days a year, even though they be pregmant., If
one does not satisfy this requirment, he does k not get a ration
card,

Complete immorality and dishonorable life are the order of the

day today. The parents were no longer in the position te teach
their children as they would have liked to,and once outside, the
children are exposed to bad examples and wrong instruetions and
they tend to listen less and less to parental instructions at home.
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In that dirty Communist world one is not even permitted to speak
about good morsls,.
I was not able to educate my family in the way as it should  have
been done, e, when we were children, were not permitted to say
anything bad and we were told to respect and honor everybody. This
is not so mﬁﬁ Unfortunately, the bad seed has been sown and I
believe I i:;ﬂ have a difficult time reacjusting my children now.
The radio kept broadcasting that the state farms would be provi-
ded with bath facilities, Unfortunately, this, too, remained just
another promise. Ie were simply not able to keep ourselves clean.
Tou have at l.east 50 percent more stealing now than before, Many
people are forced to steal. People would simply not be able to sub-
sist if they did not steal. Thank@'od, we were not forced to resort
to this practice. I always held that, if I worked honorably,and per=
formed those jJjobs which were entrusted to my care,l would be more
respected. (enarally speaking it is the Communists who steal. The
packages and other forms of help which the United States government
sent to Hungary were all stolen. A high Communist official once
stole 6;700 kKilograms of wheat which was supposed to be distributed
to the flood victims, In % D.;rud, for instance, the floed victims
received only 40 percent of what they should have gotten and the
rest was taken by the Communist officials, The man responsible for
all this was l-ﬂ,'{ﬁ*.a}ly Urbdn 5 Party secretary at Divod.

752.Cs
Hooliganism does exist. On the state farms and on the $ei- cooperativ
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people are able to buy their vacations. They usually pay wine

or money to corrupt officials and these vacations then are taken
away from other people,

I met him in 1937, at bhhﬁca@.sz;fﬁ-t -

He was an agricultural lahurarlaf poor parents, he was drafted in-
to the army in 1945, He later became an officker. He did not
like the Cormunists.

My friend wes born in 1924,

e were having a good time when we were together, Ve would go to
a rest‘&an‘h or to a movie or would attend a soccer game,

Tea,

Our friendship never changed., 3Im Ve honor and respect m one
another evern now.

Yes, we are still friends,

I value mutual understanding and mutual love as the most important
thing in a %e friend. I cannot think of anything else,

Yes, it was easy to make friends.

With the eirele of friends I had, age played no difference. Oc=
cupation was of no moment elther. There was no looking down upon
people . dxmukklwe

To have a fidiend did mean a great deal. We would discuss secret
things among ourselves and we would then keep the secret. We would
also help ecch other when in need.

This would certainly have effected my friendship. I would first
try to dissuade him, to advise him to leave the Party. If he
persisted in his attitude, then our friendship would break up.
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(181) I did have & fow Commnist friends but they all threw away from
them Communism, They gave up their membership. They did net
like it,

(19) My parents vere Roman Catholics.

(19a) Everybody ir my family was Roman Catheolic.

(19v) I; taa; am z Roman Catholic,

(20) Communism did affect religion very much. Priests were incarcerated,
Nune were armihilated in that religious orders were dissolved. |
Schools were taken away from the priests and from the religilous
orders, This was certainly not the path of respect. Religion was
persecuted, HRoman Catholics were persecuted 100 percent.

(20a) Roman Catholics were persecuted most. We could send our children
to religious instruction only secretly., I maintain that God may
give,and Goc may also take things away. They used to say that
priests and nuns are devils and those who fight with the cross
commit a sin. They also told us that Stalin and Rakosi are our
gods.,

(20b) Communists were trying to ﬁ religion for their own ends first
and to annihilate religion entirely later. I am a Roman Cathelic.
T liked to ;0 %o mass and I respected the church and the priests.
The priests did not teach us anything wrong.

Unfortunately, on the state farm they did not give ua the
opportunity to go to church and to attend lass, Those who did go

were fired,
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I don't lmowv what to say about the peace priestas, We had ne

nead for peice priests before, \e had peace, Now we have peace
priests and yet we carnot do those things which we would like

to do.

No. Communists and people outside of the Party,who were serving
as informers, were observing people and those who did go to church
were later sersecuted. They were called in to various officials,
they were sometimes beaten and they were asked why do they go to
church? Bezause they went to church, they were declared enemies
of Communisn, In spite of all of this, I received my confirma-
tion in 1951, together with two other members of my family. We
also confessed our sins,

There wera vTery many people who stayed away from church because
of fear,

I always attended services if I had the possibility to do so.

W!; of courss, did not tell anybody that we went to church, other=
wise they would have persecuted us., Even in Iugﬂslar;a wae attended
church services. I only seldom had a chance to go to churth; on
occasions xc when I was in the village or in the city.

Village fblt; older ladies went to church more frequently. Workers
and young paople attended church less frequently. This latter

group was ojserved with an especial care. Very oftsn & the Com-

munists did not even permit the priests to say the Mass, Procession:

outside of :the church were forbidden. The priest of Daved was
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taken away. The same fate befell the priest of Hohacamh

(20k) Religion agnin means most to the people. Religion certainly
does not tend to corrupt people, Heligion teaches, In the olden
days children learned everything in school according to the religion
They were taught to honor and to respect their neighbors and their
parents, Such sort of a thing was unfortunately not possible now,
In the olden days old workere of larpe farms or estates went to
church usinz the small railway.

(201) The church helped the people against the regime, After R;ko!i
was dismliss»d, the lot of the church was also somewhat better,

The church 'vas no longer so persecuted as in the time of Hﬂ'kﬂﬂi.
In 1948, the Prince Primate came to Blb('ﬂ' « More than 100;000

people assembled there to hear him speak. The Communists did

not permit 1im to use the microphone when he spoke. Later they

gave him permission to duigut he could speak only for a few

minutes. Ha was then quickly escorted £m from the stand, We

walked 25 kilometers to be able to hear him speak.

(20m) Officially there was no religious instruction at all. There was
little possibility to do this in secret. The children of today
don't know their religion. Our children were first taught religion
in Tugoslavia.

(21) If T had such a young perscn, I would have advised him to become an
agronomist,

(2la) My reason for recommending the profession of agronomist is that
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in Hungary the best opportunities are in agricg:}turﬂuu
T would have advised him to work intelligently and honxrably and
to execute faithfully all the directives given to him by his em=
ployer,

Those people who were members of the Farty,or whose parents were
members of the Party had the best chance to become agronomists.
This was equally true of AVH members and military officers.

Bast off were those people who were sitting in the Ministries in

——mr—

Budapest. llext came the engineers, the physicians, the white collar

workers, anc the directors. These were followed by higher Party
secretaries. The worst off were industrial and agricultural
laborers anc miners. These people were forced to work hard but
they did not pay them anything.

Im was an Eﬂ:‘im]‘;l_."l‘,tu’&l kakms laborer,

The same as above.

There are social classes in Hungary today also, There 1s a middle
class and there is also a higher class. The higher classes are
very well o7 f, The lower classes are just about existing.

I don't think it is good to have classes because the lower classes
are kept at a very low standard of living. I don't care personally
if somebody else has much more than I have. All I want is that I;
too, be able to provide honorably for my family.

Class backgound certainly divides people.

People unde:stood each other better befors. People were not looked
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down upon before. Hw; those people who represent the Communists,

who favor Communism, these people keep their heads high, People

with large families are looked down upon, even though the radio

and the newsnsapers proclaim that families with many members are

given prefe-ence. In reality larpge families are the worst off.
Party meabera and informers are given everything they desire.

We were pleading with them that they should at least repair ocur

windews, Owur apartment was moiat and we had to buy wood in order

to heat the oven., High ufﬂciala did not bother with little things

of this sor:. All they wers interested in was that we worked as

much as we could and that we respscted their excellencies and their

status.

This certainly cannot be said to be good. Up until the fall of

1946, things were bad enough. Now things are even much worse than

that,

ﬁne_s did not have any opportunity to do or to engage in these things.

One couldn&t dress himself up neatly and to go to Mass or to

reastaurants. Even if a person did have the time to engage in these

leisurely activities, he had no desire toYso,

Tes , the working classes suffered most,

I don't know anything about that,

They took avay everything from the Jews, Jews were taken out of

their forme:* stores and were put into offices,

Jews were fortifying Communism !'.Eﬁo*ﬂf‘fﬂfﬂ K a ﬁwm##tf-}'
- "Hﬁf#r
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(25b) Party secretaries, chief agronomists, diresctors, AVH members,

%y

and ministers were practically all Jews. RAkosi, Gers, Marosdn,
Ré?ai, R&dﬁf, - all these are Jews. dJews could be found in

every important position,

(25¢) I did have Jewish acquaintances before the war, After the war
I did not hzve Myq These were liquidated by Hitler.

(25d) The chief agronomist on the state farm on which I worked was Jewish, |
But I must take my hat off to him (a2 elo&' (¢ a Kalappal),

(25¢) People used to say that all the Jews should have been kept intact
or else all the Jews should have been put away. Those Jews,who

-]
helped the Comrmnists. This was the general conmensus of the people.

|
|
|
survived, infiltrated into leading positions and they greatly |,
|
I personally had no dealings whatsqQuever with the Jews.
(25¢) Ne.
(25g) There was mcre anti-Semitism after the war because Jews are in

the Communist Party and they play the leading roles. These are

hated intensely by the people.
(25h) My opinion is that these Jews should be glven some work so that

they, too,could work,and would not harrass and persecute people from

offices and cther places of influence and authority.
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I was interested in Vestern uriantad‘?nlitics only. Eastern 1
politics interested me only insnf‘arVI tried to dissuade some
of my friends from it, This was the extent of my interest.

I read the newspapers, Otherwise the regime did not interest me

at all, If I would have been able to, I would have exploded them
all,

I was only interested in Vestern oriented politics. Russians poli=-
tics I neither enjoyed nmor could I stand it. |
On the state farm we people always got together and I kept on tell-
ing my frierds and compatriots which is the better side and which

is the worst, I xXm always listened to the radio and I was Just
not goinz tc give that up.

From 1945 to 1946,1 was a member of the Communist Party. You should
not interpret my membership in the sense that I liked them,or that

I trusted thelr rugima; I became a member so as to avold persecu-
tion, to be tolerated by them,and to be able to tell others what

% dastardly acts they were preparing to execute with our country.

When the Western nations were persecuted, wvhen they kmx beganypro-

pagate that in the West people don't have snough to eat, when they !
began to tell us that people are unemployed in the tht; then I ’
stepped out of the Farty,and I ignited my Party book. During
1948 and 19&9; I was repeatedly beaten by the police because I
listened to the radie. On another occasion I was picked up by the
police beczuse a person whom I called dirty Russian Communist had |
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informed on me. At the police they called me an imperialist
American‘dirty’chainad dog: I hated &x them from the bo:tu

of my heart., During 1949, I and a friend of mine beat up two
Russian soldiers. On this occasionjy we were again picked up by
the police and were beaten by them in turn.

(2b) No.

(2¢) My political opinion changed completely since 1945, I detest the
Eastern regime and I cannot stand it. We decided among ourselves
that we would beat to death a Hungarian here if we would discover

that he is a Commnist,

The Commnists do not operate for the benefit of the peopls,
They are dishonorable, t.hur_y know of no respect. They are exploit=
ers, and people are obliged to go tc work on state farms and on
2o 75205 S

(2d) Prior to 1945, the situation began to vacillate a little bit and
things werea't too good, The Russian army moved into the country
and everybody was told to represent Communism and to respect it,
They promisad us many things but they did not execute any of those
promises, [ was not interested in the Party.

They soon got hold of me in the /pwz.tq,, because I decided to
distribute the many animals on the large estates among the people.
They took me into the commandantura, and there a Russian sergeant
gave me a gun and told me to take care of the Swablans who were

held prisoners there and that if I failed I would be shot. So I was
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forced to cooperate with them. By the end of the fall of 1946,

I was no longer in the Party, With Hﬁknai other communists alse
returned from fhugsia and some of them came back to the village.
These people became the masters again. They quarrelled with one
another and were in wviolent disagreement as to whn:?ﬂu. During
the time of the wheat threshing, one of them said that no one
would be permitted to take home wheat from the threshing machine.
Another Communist who was sitting in the village office, violently
disagreed with this interpretation, called in his comrade and told
him that his procedure was not Communistic at all. VWe, tno; soon
learned of this incident, Thereupon, this old Communist who was
against confiscation was soon taken away., It was he who said that

he abides by Communist principles but that he would never recognize

this dirty regime,

From October, 1944 till 1945, the Russians were engaged in re-
quisitioning cows, horses, %d carriages, These soldiers raped
four girls in !-':uh;casﬂm. A similar incident occurred at
F&fgkﬁ#ﬂzﬂ;whara a fourteen year old girl was raped., Similar
incidents occurred in a village called Dﬂiuda

In the fall of 1944, I believe it was in November, a British
four~engine nlane caught fire and nine soldiers parachuted from
it. ® One of the soldiers, a British colonelx,was shot to death
by the Russians, He was subsequently buried naked, The other

’
Britishers wore taken to Pecs and from thereon were transported

R
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to the West, The GPU came out from Huhaks, took hold of the

two Russian soldiers involved in this incident and shot them,
About a month after this incident, the ceclonel's relatives came
from England and took his remains to London,.

I was interasted in politics, but not in the Russian type of
politics.,

People cbey the authorities because they are forced to do so,and
the population saw that it had no way out. But people did not
obey the authorities all the time. The population tried teo
outfox the authorities whenever there was an occasion or possi-
bility to do =o0.

They were haati r:;uatadlrﬂ They took me to the police on several
occasions. Our food was scarce, very often we did not have bread,
flour, or other items. We were not allowed to ﬁlaughtur pigs.
People fattaned their pigs I’ur_jﬁ&‘\ghtering, but if they mx were
in arrears with their taxes or with their forceful deliveries,
they did not get a license to slaughter them. If the mmm person
then paid his tax arrears and demanded his slaughtering 11¢aﬁg‘,
he would be told that the officials now did not have the time to
issue the license, He should come back in three days. If he did
go back aftsr three days some new taxes were discovered and he
again did not get his slaughtering license.

I, VI, V

111, IX, XV

They were xEfx affected by all these points.
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I, II, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XII, XI1, xIv,

The same as the ana::rto question (3d),.

When a person zoes to work and things aren't as they used t.%m or
as he would like to see them be, these things can be very offen-
slve and thay can make a person quite despondent.

There were nany little incidents which irked me a great deal, e
were paid in part according to the amount of milk we could produce
and the amount of milk we could produce depended directly on the
fodder we géve to the animals, It usually so happened that when
the fodder vas of good quality, we did not have enough of it,but
when the focdder was bad, half rotten away, then we had so much of
it that we ¢idn"t know where to put it,

Equally important was in this respect the realization,~the
acute feelirg of inability of providing the necessary clothing
for the family. I worked very hard to provide for my family and

yet I couldn't earn enough because the regime did not permit me
to do so. {lse, on vacations, only 50 percent of our wages weras
paid out to us, If I did decide to visit my relatives on these
occasions I was never able to bring enough money with me as it
would have behoved me to do. A situation like that is very bad
indeed,

There were little joys and pleasures, such as when my parents or

when my brothers or sisters came to ses me. The same was true

when I was adle to buy a few pieces of clothing, or when we were
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able to prepare a little bit better food, particularly on Sundays.
The biggest pleasure of them all was the fact that we were able
to come to the Vest,

(4) Before the advent of Communism, the real power in Hungary was
in the hands of the Jews, Now again, in the chief positions
the Jews were sitting in and they were the ones who directed the
Communist Party.

(4£) There was a very great Communist bureaucracy in Hungary, a bureau=
cracy which completely exploited the people, The Communists liked
to describe the West as overrun by the bureaucrats.

(4h) These officials were recruited from the ranks of the Jews, of the
factory workers, and of the arAKAd?lﬂhf:Sffr

(41) Army officers were recruited from the enlisted men who turned
out to be politically reliable.

(&3) Factory leaders were made up of Jews m and of former factory

workers.
(5) 1 was not interested in the DISZ.
(5d) No, I was not a member,

(5e) Not applicable.

(6) Party members were interested in representing the Russian Communist
regime, in praising Stalin and Lenin, in maintaining the Peoples
Army and ir going against the West.

(6a) Such people had to enter the Party who had large families and who

otherwise could not secure themselves a job. They entered so as
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to be able to make some money,

Such people desired to enter into the Party who wish¥teo fill
greater or more important positions, who wanted to work in the
offices and who wanted to torture the worlters.

Among the obtlirmations of a Party mamberf were such things as the
maintenance of the state system, true representation of the
Russian system, respect the Red Army, and, above all, to keep an
eternal watch over Stalin and Lenin and over the Russian Red Star.
Also, the discovery of enemies and their elimination, a constant
agitation anmong the population,and the maintenance of the Hungare
ian reglme,

I knew very many people who entered the Party. All these people
left the Party later. These people beat up the Party secretary
on several cccaslons, they took out Rﬁkasi'a plcture from the
Party offices, hung it on a fence and cut out his eyes., All this
happened befors 1950, These people became members in 1945, 1946,
or 1947. 7They did not pay their dues because they did not like
the system. The Communists were able to trick every xkmex strata
of the population, We worked very much, we suffered a great deal,
and we were starwing,

People generally did not change even after they entered the Party.
There were, hownvurl;sune Communists who thought that they could
do anything thay pleased,

People left the Party because the Party constantly denounced the
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West and tr.ed to present it in a very bad light to the popula-
tion, The neople knew 100 percent“Ei: the West was like. And
the persist;nt Communist falsehoods quickly opened their eyes

and they lelt the Party.

I was a Party member between "45 and '46. I paid my dues only
for two or shree months and thereafter lost interest in it,

I entered the Party on the 13th of March, 1945. I entered the
Party to pus an end to any further persecution of my own person
and of my family. Ve had a radio and they discovered that we
were lietening to Western radio broadcasts. Ix couldn't help it.
To me a Wes:ern news item meant much more than one hundred Hungar-
jan news itoms, I simply did not care whether thay;:::: I was
listening o not,

See answer o question (61).

We didn't raally know how the Party looked like. I was disappointed,

to be sure, but I was not personally interested in the Party. All
I wanted to do was to find out what wag going on inside the Party
and to prevent, insofar as I could prevent it, the vexation of the
good pecple”s in our area.

On cne occasion two lady teachers were arrested. A small boy
came to me and reported that two Russiane and two Hungarian police=
men arrested and took away their teachers., I immediately went with
thm others itk to Davod where some of the teachers' relatives were

living and Trom then on we proceeded %to Mghﬁas to the police center,
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I went with my deputation to the police colonel who knew me
personally. I asked the colonel where the two teachers were,
He told me that they were in room number five. But they wouldn't
let me see them. There were two guards in front of the door of
room number five with machine pistols in their hands, We soon
learned that. the two teachers were to be brought to Féﬁa. I
went back to the colonel and demanded to know on what grounds, on
what basis, did they arrest the two ladies, He in turn asked me
why was I bent on saving them, I replied that I thought the two
ladies were very good teachers, that they taught the children order
and honor, Vhat kind of an honor, inquired the colonel. I replied
that the teichers taught the children how to respect their parents,
The colonel wanted to know why the teachers failed to teach their
children how to respect the state. We engaged in an endless and
futile discussion but we didn't get anywhere. 35S0 I went to the
Party headquarters and lodged a complaint, At the Party head-
quarters I again complained that the father of one of the teachers
used to be # Communist in 1919, and that on that ground alone, they
should & no; take them away. The Party people couldn't decide the
issue so thoy called up higher authorities. Eventually, to make a
leng story short, the two teachers were set free, I succeeded in
doing something for them even though I was no longer a Party member.,
The two lad.es were so thankful to me that they promised to put
this in writ: ng whenever I should need such a testimony,
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o be
(6m) During the elections of 1945, I was electedlone of the eletion

officials. This was the only official duty I ever had. Other-
wise I was not interested in the meetings.

(6n) The Party center is in Budapest. Shortly .after the Russian army
entered Hungary, placards advert&ﬁd the possibility of entering
the Par__:}r,. I assumed that by entering the Party my troubles with
the Red Army would come %o an end.

(60) I never participated in any of the Party meetings.

(6r)  Rakosi, Gerd, Morossn, Emime Kdder and the Red Army directed the
Party.

(68) I have ﬁnnhing good to say about them., I hate them just as I hate
a dog. These people have betrayed the people and they have caused
the people to distrust them 100 percent,

(7) I was a member of the labor union from 1951 to & 1957,

(7e) ’&don't- know, I was a member of this organization because I was
obliged to be such. One can get no work, no assistance, if he is
not a member of the labor union,

(7e) I was obliged to attend labor union meetings.

(7e) We knew that everywhere in the world there were labor unions. We
knew that in the West, too, were labor unions., We were thus not
suprised to see it in Hungary. Pﬂﬂpl&; however, later began to
say that the labor unions in the USA are different, better than
the labor union we had, The Communists, on the other hand, told us
that the American labor unions are working against the people,



NO, 160 mA" INTERVIEY SECTION G LP p. 66

The Hungarians have had enough of their labor union.

(8) Not one member was a convinced Communist,

(9) It was, for the most part, old Communists, people who entered the
Party before the way or shortly after the war,who became dis-
illusioned with it. They gave back their Party books because
the many promises which the Communist Party advertised shortly
after the war were not kept. It was these people who made the
Revelution in Hungary. We, too, threw down the red h:t;-f&.”‘
This was a great event out in the-p;:::tzhg‘knau what we m=m would
have gotten for it had we remained in Hungary.

(10a)  They were plundering everything from everybody. If somebody was
=k talking against them, that was bad enough, but if somebody
did not say a word that was equally bad. They were beating the
people. They were equally cruel with enlisted men in the army.
They did not give us food. They kept talking about the wonderful
benefits and advantages of the Russian Communist system. They
exposed themselves to the hate and disgust of the population,.

(10b) The AVH operated through informers who were recruited from Party
members and from non-Party members., These informers constantly

observed whomx was talking against the Russlians or against the mgm ex-
isting Hungarian system. These people were rounded up and were
sent to the mines or Xy to the prisons,

(lle) One method of m* enlistment was through the regular army; young

men would be enlisted into the army and there they would be exposed
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to a political indoctrination in the liussian sense. Those enlisted |

men who went for this sort of talk were transferred to the ranks |

of the AVH, If a person refused to become such an AVH member, he

was declared an enemy of the state and was arrested and imprisoned.
Single people who knew no authority either of man or of Ged,

- many of them havinz no parents at all - entered the AVH ranksx for

the money.

The relationship betwean the AVH and the regular police force was

not good,

The Party gnvern:=l the AVH, The AVH, on the other hand, watched

over the Party. The Party had the greater voice of the two,

I knew a police colonel, He was arrested in connection with the

Rajk affair. He worked in Hhh;Eu first and later became the chief

of the county police force in Pdh:. I also knew a police captain ‘

by the name of dew;, ‘Hu was the chief of the political section.

I don't know what has become of him,

Ho; I was never arrested, 1 was frequently taken to the police

station but they always let me go free. |

Those kulaks who actively opposed the regime and who did not sntisfy‘

their forced delivery requirements were more often exposed to arrest

than others,

There was the prison of m:;.ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂlﬁ# , there was the famous prison of

Vdc§, the Ce1l1aghb@lE7t of Szeged, the larkd Ve in

Budapest, and every larger city had prisons of its own, On an
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ad joining state farm there were constantly about 1,000 prisoners
employed as farm hands,

(13) I don't know what advice I could give him,

(13a) 11' a person works :? a state farm, and works digilently and honestly,
and loudly denounces the West everyday, = such a person is relative=-
ly safe. Hn may even be decorated.

(13b) Being politically active does not help. This would only be help=-
ful if a person were a higher Party member,

(13e) If a person knows a Communist Party member, a Party member who
does not betray him, such a connection may be very useful some-
times,

(13r) If a person talks, 1t is bad, if a person doesn't talk, it is also
bad,

(14) The terror was exceptionally great and intense from 1948 until
1953, It lassened slightly in 1953. From 1954 to 1956, it was
bad again. From the spring to the fall of 1956, there was again
a gradual latdown.

(15) The Su:iet Union reduced Hungary to the status of a colony. They
wanted the Hungarian Communist Party to achieve those thinEB which
it took the Communist Party of the Soviet Union to achieve in 30
years,

(15¢) Soviet influence was mostly felt in the ministries in the capital.
But there was Soviet interference also in the economic life and

in every other sphere of life,
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People couldn®t expreass themselves at all,

I could truct a person who saw eye to eye with me, and who, when
it came to secret understandings, was capable and willing to keep
the secret.

One could speak more freely about the Russian systep. The opposite

was true when it came to discussion of the Vestern system.

Yes, there :.3 such a possibility, It is always possible, for in-

stance, to bribe people on the state farms. If the bribery should
be discoverad, the consequences are very very serious, A person
must be preparad to take the consequences,

I was once "inad by the police and I told them that I did not have
money to par them. On another occasion I did not satisfy my
forced delivery requirements, In 1954, I refused to pay 2,600
forints of faxes.

The strong points of the rezime were that the people should pro=
duce as much as possible and that they should defend their rela=-
tion to wori:. The weak points were that most people did not de
what they wore supposed to do. Theyeither did not want to do the
job,or they did not know how to do the jJob.

The people 'esisted the regime in that they organized themselves
and did nov do the jobs entrusted to them,

Farmers, lahorars, agricultural laborers, former land owners and
poor people of the pre-war pmmmk¥m period opposed the regime most.
The S orists opposed the regime least.
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I read the books and historie: and I was very enthusiastic
about Petofi. [(Interviewer's; Note: The answer to the last
question as well as other aiswers to previous questions are

often confused and aot alsays intelligible, Interviewer made
every effor: at the time of the interview to make the Respon=

dent realizs what was a&]?allr asked., Unfortunately, because

of Respondeat's intellertral limitations, sume of the questions,
particularly the more ‘nvolvad ones, did not olicit an intelligible

reply.)
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Radio was the most important source i my information. I had

a large Telefunken set, a world receiver, ﬂdi'uf some 300 people
on the farm, some ten or twelve people were equipped with radios.
Five or six of these were world receivers,

Radio :&ithe most important.

Newspapers represented the next most important source,

Yes,

I read theS2/¥ujsag, Ssabad Nep, Szavad F6A , e Szabad Nép
was interesting for us because from it we were able to learn what
sort of lies was the regime telling at a particular time. We

were able to compare these lies with the radio broadcasts of the
Western radies and could then inform our friends accumi;klya

e did not always read th&fi’g 13‘5 because it sa did not always
come to us. As far as the Szabad Hih was concerned I was only
interested in Western news items which were in it.

I was interewtsd in these newspapxers in order to learn distfjotions
of Western events. ':
I was only interested in news items dealing with the West.
There were no wallpapers in our locality.

We have seen WesteryGerman mmm publications written in the Hungarian'
language. This was sometime bewteen 1955 and 1956,
I had a collection of ten to twalr;hfaatarn leaflets which arrived §

in Hungary by means of balloons. fkmk caption on one of them was
’ ! L : ’ ’ i
something like this: Rakosi I‘fﬂérf‘ /zaszfu{-'/ @ Fefe o’
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merlt te ¢s a -'j-(.'g;;'g £d’fﬂ:f}¢' Uﬂ'?}/ .
Another of these leaflets contained instructions for those who
desired to flee to Yugoslavia. The instructio=s dealt with ways
and means of elimiﬁating barbed wire obstacles,

Yes, we did go to the movies. Ve had a local movie, situated
about 15 to 20 meters from the ak stables, We also had a Culture
Hall, seatiag about 150 people. Ve usually went to the movies
about twice a week,

I liked to view Vestern movies and Yugoslav partisan films,

We did not have entertaining filsms. These were usually films
of political nature, instructing x us about the x East, Some of
the movies showed us what ¥Eks"bad deeds™ the Western nations,
Americans and Germansycommitted.

Yes, we saw foreign films; we saw Yugoslav, Italian, French, and
Amerdican films,

The title o a2 Yugoslav movie was something like the History of
Little ¥ » Other Yugoslav films had the partisan fights as

?‘ﬁ.ﬂﬁ’ S ale‘
-tiiewene=s388, We have seen some French love films, Another

French filmj had to do with kings,

I naver wen: to the theater,

Yes, I did read booksyx.

I read zbou: 15 books a year,

Some of these books had to do with the history of the first world

war, ancther~ was ent-itlnd}{ﬂ{.fdd‘-fff -‘f?f (A Road to Knowledge).
' -

I also read the %(ﬂﬂ (4 World Lexicon and the workss of Janos
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/
;fgpﬂﬂ)f , Sendor Petofi, Others had to do with 184,8%s revolu-

tion, bicgrephy of Kossuth, the history of Imre Bng;r, Bobinson
Crusce. I read another book, The History of the United States,
We did have a library in thew, containing some three=four
thousand volumes, but all these were Communist books, Most of
the books I enumerated above were books we purchased in nearby
cities in artiquarian stores.

I was interested in books., O0ld books interestad me most. These
could not be had from the library we hadfan we purchased some of
them from antiquarian stores,

Yes, I did have difficulty getting the books I wanted because
those books were forbidden. I could get hold of them only in
secret. AVll members dressed in civilian clothes and other ine
vestigators often checked people(s packages in the wities and

if they would have ever discovered the books we bought there, %
we muld have been punishad severely.

Futofi Kossuth, T,qﬁd'.i'éﬁ.i' , Arany?, Vorosmarty, Veres, Peter,

I couldn't get hold of any books written by Western authors,

Yes, there vere a fw-%ﬂ{fé”ﬂ'-ﬁ’?d‘{m}rsterinus Island} for in -

L
stance, or lobinson Crusee. Another one, entitled , { A-i!-t‘

’ i i
&715&/#«-&; \Five Veeks on a Zeppelin) we purchased in an antiquare

ian store,

We listened to music and plays broadcast by Budapest radie. Our
top
favorimte program was Istallo 7S z{‘-'lﬁ’ » (Stablemaster),
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I had a Telefunken world receliver,

We listened to music, gypsy music,and plays.

We listened about two hours a day, usually in the evening after
work.

We listened to the radio in our own home,

Yes,

e 1istened to the Hungarian broadcasts of the Voice of Amaricn;
Free BEurcpe, Tokyo, French stations, Rome, London, Ankara, and
Madrid, I vas very interested in these broadcasts. They were
excellent. I liked particularly the jokes and the Free Europe
program entitled "Reflector”,

I listened to these programs late in the evening, very often after
midnight,

I pot the impression that the time ¥as would come, that the time
would come soon, when the Hungarianxz leaders would meet their
fate.

I was thoroughly convinced that the foreign radio broadcasts were
telling us the truth,

Quite a few people were arrested for listening to a foreign radioc
broadcast and their radio sets were unq&{iscatudn

Yes.

Information received by word of mouth had to do for the most part
with rumors, that the situation would soon change, that Communism

wouldn't last leng in Hungary, or that they would soon do away
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with ngusi.

(7o) Some of these rumors I heard from the agronomist, others from the
people taking care of the fodder,

(7e) Sometimes I received quite reliable information.

(7d) I recall the rumor spread arcund once that Russia would have been
able to defeat the United States during the Second World War but
that she chose not to do seo.

(7e) I heard rumors in the restaurants and out in the open where I
worked, Other rumors were d;ﬁagzijgd during the threshing peried,

Ral
still others I heard from ®ary—odd men.

(74) I don't really know. Policemen and AVH members are usually in
these places,

(8) Information published in the Hungarian newspapers and dealing with
the Eastern part of the world I did not read at all,

(8a) I believed in such things aq‘fur instance, xhka the announcement
that the food rationing system would end, or that the trade with
the Western world would begin again,

(8d) I was trying to analyze news items and was thinking about them
a great deal to discover wk whether or not such and such a thing
were possible.

(8e) Foreign radio broadcasts were considered more trustworthy than
domestic radio broadcasts.

(8£) Ne.

(8g) I read the Szabad Nep daily. The Sgabad Nep did not speak the truth
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and we did not believe in it. It always denounced the Vest,

No.

YTes.

Very many people,

Those who ware members of the Party,

I read about the Atomic Bomb epgsgadaq There were three bombs
dropped, I believe. The Szabad Hei wrote that even now very
many people are dying as a result of it.

I was very interested in that. I know quite well that the
Russians stertad the Korean War, because they wanted to. liberate,

and then to subjugate, the people.

lladio Budapest and Szabad Héh told us that American airplanes

were droppirg these germs. Ue were teld that these germs would

destroy the people. This, I knew, was not true at all. I thought

the opposite might be true.

&gghgg_ﬂﬁﬁ_uruta that the United States is re-arming Germany very
fast, very quickly. It was said that even former S8 soldiers

are being rearmed, The United States, 1f it permits the re-armament

of Germany, so I reasoned, & certainly will be able to completely

annihilate Russia if and when it comes to a war. I was in com-

plete agreemant with such an eventuality.

I have seen once seven or eight such flying balloons. Soldiers

were trying %o shoot them down. The Budapest radio announced that

Hungary was officially protesting against the balloocns. One of
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the balloons fell down in our immediate vicinity, about one
kilometer from where we lived. Ve made a raincoat out of the
material,

(10f) I knew that the people by the thousands are leaving the E:uturn
zone of occupation through Berlin into the Vestern zones of
occupation,

(10g) I know about the Summit Meeting. It lasted about three weeks.

(10h) I know about éhigréractivitiaa through the radio. Even the
Budapest radio referred to them occasionally. It was said that
im these amgggra politicians have established an army af their own
in the West and that they want to use that army forw dnut.ruct.i.on
of the "beloved" Hungarian government, I did not know if the
refermgnce to the amy was true or false, but I thoughfto myself

that the socner they come the better.
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I would first of all eradicate the entire system and would get

rid of the Russians,

The land reform instituted between 1945 and 1947 was a very m
nice, very beautiful deed. That I would keep.

I would permit the free sale of bread, I would eliminate the 8YS=
tem of forced deliveries and I would eliminate the system of

feod coupons,

There is no need for the continued existence of the Communist
Party. Those partles, which mmmwork for the benefit of the people,
and the Christian parties should be kept,

;t‘ they do it in the way it is done in the United States of America,
then yes,

People should be free, and I mean everybody, to speak their mind
without any limitations whatsoever.

Suech regimes, as they obtain in the United States, if they were
trahsplanted into Hungary, - denunciation against such regimes I
would not allewybecause such regimes, after all, work for the
benefit of the people.

Tea, people sxm should definitely be forbidden to say things which
are against the stata,

Yes.

Hot; 1f their purpose is to attack the government,

Armed uprising against the government is fully justified if the
state proceads to execute some injustice against the people, If
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the state works for the benefit of the people, then such state

or government should be helped by everybody by all means avail-
able,

The present system must be eradicated and a new system must be
established which works for the benefit of the people from every
point of wviow,

It all depends, = I don't really care whether you have nationali-
zation or not as long as the govermment puts everything on the
market so that there is no difficulty for the people., Nationali=-
zation is not really a necessity.

Some of the factories; such as the Imk liquor factories, textile
factories and many other factories should be restored to their
former owners., I favor restoration of these factories because
these factories,when they were privately owned,paid higher wages
to their workers than was the case after the nationalization. In
nationalized factories the state determines the monetary value of
work and he who is not satisfied with the working conditions damx
thus laid down is simply arrested.

I am all for private mxk profit. I don't have here 1n§&§dsraat
accumulation of wealth, but the possibility given to all people
to accumulatie scme small means which allow a good life,

I prefer private banka, In private banks it was much easier to get

credlt then in nationalized banks. One could not even talk about
getting credit from the state banks.
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I was never lnterested in these questions.

Such factories should not be nationalized.

Government plarning, in the form as I knew it in Hungary, I decidedly
disapprove of. State planning as such may be a very good principle
but the Communist principle of planning is not a2 good one.

Yes, there are such areas. The state should not interferfin pri-
vate life and should not tell me what I am to sow or what people

are to produce in the factories. In former times people were
producing more and came up with better quality k goods than now

in the factories,

Yes. A citizen is obliged to defend and to respect the state.

Yes, For instance, I m was on a state farm. It was my obligation
to represent the state's rights.

There wasn't much of an improvement,

People in Hungary de have more epportunity today to go to the movies,
theaters or to attend concerts., People, however, did not have a
high opinion of these increased opportunities. All these places
were state institutions and the proceeds from them all went to the
state., Alse, people were forced to see Just one type of program

and they were actually tricked and betrayed by the state.

No, decidedly not. The people eat about 70 percent worse than they
used to befcre the war. They take & everything away from the people.
It is worse now than in 1946,

It is not better now at all than it was ia 1950,
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The clothing situation now is much worse than before the war.

It is somewhat better nmow than in 1946, This; however, is due
only to the fact that in 1946 you still had destroyed factories
as a result of the war, and there was no “rade. The situation
now is just a little better than in l‘?ﬁﬁ.’fha clothing require-
ments of the population are certainly not satisfied.

The same as (lha).

Tus; industrial proﬁﬁpution did increase in Hungary since 1945,
for the benefit of the state, As far as the people are concerned,
there was nc increase at all, In many cases the situation now is
even worse than before,

Every worker has his own activity,and all the workers should be
permitted to go about theilr business freely. They did not pro=-
duce as they should have been producing, even though much force
was employeds They didn't pay enough, Much material was pro=-
duca{hut most of it was no good. I would rather have two good
tractors than six bad ones. A Western tractor that we hadjout-
worked ten Eastern tractors and even then it did not suffer a
mechanical failure, They sent out ten tractors, for instance, to
a state machine station, not because there was any need for these
tractors, but just in order to keep the factories going.

The people should manage the factory, those who are competent,
who are experts, And they should pay the people well.

I don't think collective farms are any good. They are ne good at
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TEI{::
all, The ¥ is nod good either. People are forced to enter

these things and they simply don't have the desire to work. It
is here where the people are tricked and betrayed.

(17a) They are all bad.

(17b) In Hungary stase farms are no good, There, too, thay want to
achieve everytains,and they are not able to achieve anything at
all,because thaere is a direected precduction and because they
don't pay tle people well enough. The people would work, to be

sure, if they would only pay them well enough.

(17¢) Collective farms should be abolished and the land should be dise
tributed among the peasants., After the Revolution a great move-
ment was stertad in this direction. Unfortunately, the AVH people
came and bert the people and arrested some of them.

(17d4) All collective farms should be disbanded. People now employed there,
the members, should receiveit the land, or these people should be
asked whether or not they would want to continue the collective on
a voluntary basis., This would be a voluntary and free farm associa-
tion., I car imagine mk some groups who would probably want & to
continue on this basis but I doubt it very # much. If a group
should decice to continue the collective, they should enjoy com=
plete autenony.

(17e) ARl the land should be distributed among the members.

(17f) TYes, there should be a limit to land holding. 25=50 holds of land
should be alleotted to a family depending on the number of family
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mmker members,and depending on the ability of the family to

work the land.

All the land should be returned to private ownership. The former

owners of lerge estates should not receive anything at all. They

should receive only as much as they can cultivate themselves.

Every smallholder should receive his land back up until 50 holds

per family.

No owners of former great estates should recelve their estates

back., They should give back some land to the bishops, an amount
maintenance

necesary for the mmimkximsmxs of the churches and of the schools.

A reasongﬂ?ie amount would be 5,000 holds per county. I am net

at all againast the church, They taught us many good things.

These should be distributed among the population in a certain

ratio. The buildings should either be dismantled and the material

distributed or a village should be built around them., I would

not give the Communists anything at all.

If some peonle would want te establish cooperatives, on a voluntary

basis, then, naturallysyes.

If the stat2 would leave agriculture alone, then such state aid

would not b2 necessary. The best help the state can poasiblz glive

is to refrain from interferring into the activities of agriculture,

and if people are free enough they will produce enough from which

everybody will benefit in the long run.

T would disband the tractor stations. I would assign a machine
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to fivee-ten smallholders. The machine would belong to them all
and they would then decide how to use it and in what order,
Machines which are good and wse useable I would give to the
people. I would not give these machines away free of charge but
would have people pay # them through a period of years.

Yes, mechanization of agriculture is desireable, The work be-
comes much easier then and one produces more thereby.

The church chould have a voice in legisklative matters, in order
to safeguard the peoples' interests. i
Ihs; churches should be completely independent of the state.

The different faiths should all be on equal footing. They should
all be equal,

Taa; churches should receive financial suppert from the state.
Such aid is necessary because they took away everything from the
churches, They took away their schools, they were completely sub-
jugated, and because the young people today are so bad we want the
churches to be supported.

Yes. Churches should = have a word in public education to the ex=-
tent of LO=-/0 percent,

Yes. This ‘.3 necessary because the people have completely lost
their desire to live, They do everything on the Russian pattern.
Thia; of course, must cease.

I would seu{ my children to parochial school.

The church should get back about 5,000 hclds per county. Also as
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many buildings as are necessary for the maintenance of the

5;000 helds should be returned to the church. Also all these
sﬁhnﬂlsluhich were taken away from the church should be returned
to them, =
Those Party members who behaved themsselves very badly should ﬁ;
made responsible for their actions. They should be made to suffer
for their daeeds.

They should not all be treated alike, Depending ¥ on the role
each one of them played. The obscure little Party members I would
exempt completely. These people did not assist in the establishe-
ment of the Russian system,

The leaders should be brought to an uninhabited island and should
be permitted to live there., (Ministers, Party secretaries, and
high functionaries,)

I would talk to these people and would try to lead them back to
life. They did not know most of the time what they were doing and
they did no% act on their own.

I don't know what was the purpcse of the rank and file members.

Those who committed some crimes should be sentenced to ten to

fifteen years of imr imprisonment or should be tortured in exactely

the same way as they used to torture others.

These peopl2, too, should be brought te trial, Those who have
committai a crime should be punished, and after they served
their penalties thev chould be set free.,
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Members of the police force should be forgiven, I think,

Hungary contributed a great many things tc the Western culture
before the war, This contribution was :ntaﬂﬁpte& and was pro-
hiﬁ:ed after the war,and people were not sco much as permitted to
think about the West.

YTes,

No, it did not differ before the war,

Yes,

Yes, it does differ from the American. We were under-developed,
Yes.

Tes,

The era of Francis Joseph was the best,

Very well,

People emigrated because there wara.;:ry many unemployed in Hungary.
They had the possibility to work andYsave in the West, Things got
pretty tight and the people were pushed to the corner under Horthy
alsa. TYet it was far better than it is now., People emigrated to
the West it search of a better 1iiF1hond.

We considered the Russianz system to be feudalistic, not the West,
or the Western systemyas it was told us by the Budapest radie.

&k 1919, = I remember that very well, at that time r:-did not have

a Communist regime but a republic, a red regime (HoRoS Hf#f;m ol
At that time they took away the land from the great landowners as
wall as the wheat which was qtdphiiiﬁdﬁnpuaaa-and they bngan-diﬂ% i
trihﬁting these amongst éﬁuse who did not have any. Those people |
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did not comnit atrocities amd murders as they do it now,

(22el) The situation was about 70 percent better at that time than it
is now under the Communist system.,

(22€) There was mich social and economic inequality in Hungary before
1945,

(22g) They did no: persecute the people under the Horthy regime. Every-

body was able to go whergever he pleased. If somebody wanted to

go to the United States or some other place, he was permitted to

do so. Things like that did not matter at all, They called the
Horthy system a feudal system but that fe‘gﬂal system was not bad.
They also say that there were very many unemployed under Horthy.

But we were a varyc:;g:‘family and yet we had a good life, Those
who wanted o work could work. My father ruqﬁHvad money and land
on account of his large family. Hungary did not have the right
policy during the world war, Hungary should never have gone against
the West,

(221)  The period 1945-1948 compares favorably to what we had before, it
was about the same thingg. What happened x after 1948, was much
worse. In 1953, it was somewhat better, TIrom 1953 on up until
1956, (spring of 1956) it got a little better again,

(23) I don't thirk border lines are important.,

(23b) TYes. Hungary can rightfully claim & Transylvania, the Hungarian
territories now in Cgzechoslavakia, the Hungarian terygitories in
Yugoslavia, and the Sub=Carpathian zegpimm region,
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Yes, I beliave Soviet Russia does threaten Hungary's territory.
But if our knowledge is not incorrect, then Hungary already

is one of Russia's colonies., This great sin has already been
committed,

Yes, mﬁfé a natural conflict between Ehmgarﬂdns and Russia.
The two states are in agreement and the two peoples do not hate
each other,

The same as above in (23e).

The Hungarian people have a very profound respect for both Austria
and for the Austrian nation, This attitude is not shared by the
Hungarisn state,

The two peoples rather like each other., But the two states do

not seem to get along very well.

I don't see any pOsaihiliQE}au of improving Hungarg's situation

as it stands right now, Hungary ought to be given back her terri-
tories.

A federation would be useful. This federation should not, however,
be based on the Russian system. It ought to be built according to
the Western =k system.

This federation should include Western Germany, Auat.riau; Italy,
Iugualaria; Albania, Bulgaria, France = the whole of Europe, I
would even include Russia, but not the Russian system,

Hungary would participate in the production activities of this
federation,
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They ought to leave people alone. If a person was born at a

certain place, he should be permitted to stay there. All pq:pplu
should have equal rights,

The Russians are a good people, but the Russian system is the world!':
worst system.

Yes, there cre the Cossacks, there are the I-Iungula; the lff:"??ffz <q
people, and the Ukrainians,

Yes. The orly thingg is that the Russians are very backward and
they are not. being taught well, The Russians ought to be taught the
Western cuiﬂ;ra, not the Eastern culture. I am quite certain they
could be edicated,

No, pYes, I knew some of them quite well, This was during the

war,

We received then with love, those who were good, that is., What

we hated was the regime,

We felt that. it was a bad thing that the Russians came to our
country, They destroyed Hungary,

We felt tha'. the Russians should leave us, that they should leave
Hungary and should let Hungary become an independent, neutral

state, Unfortunately, this did not come about,

The Mar;::tuyatan probably would have been better. Unfortunately,
we never knew what sort of a system ﬂﬁfre they to bring about.

The fact about Marxism,that it is of English origin,appeals to me
most. Otherwise I don't know its history,
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what I dislike in it is that even though it is of English origin,

it was not the system of Marx that was actually put in effect,

Nelther Lenin nor Stalin were good Marxists.

Stalin was even less of a Marxist than Lenin.

I zanfl can't say anything good about Tito either,. Still, he was

flirting with the West and he divorced himself from the Russian

system. This fact caused the Hungarian people to be enthusiastic

about X hin.

I am unable to discover any good lMarxists among the Hungarian

Communists.

In all probablity, yes.

Yes.

In Hungary they only talk about democracy. But the Hungarian

brand of democracy does not even approach the true thing.

They say, for instance, that a good democrat is he who is a good

Comrunist £nd is in love with the Communist system. This, I believe

is the meaninz of the word, but I want to have nok part of it,

National Comminism means trading with the Western powers., Tito is

a man who entered into trade agreements with the Westy., His state

poflicy is not as barbarian as that of the h rest, |

Tes, |

Communists of the 1919 era were against the October Revolution. Th%

aim was to prevent a possible return of the untenable system of i
|
|

very great land estates. There should be a good life, peace, good
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relations with the West, but there should be no kingdom, Eurcpe
should be united,

Perhaps he is playing § turncoat politics. Perhaps he started

out on a good read and couldn't make out and now is obliged to
continue cooperating with the Russians, But sooner or later he

is poing to go with the West.

He is not a good Communist,

Communism and Hungarian patriotism mayk be compatible, if everything
proceeds justly. This does not prevent Hungary from having good
relations with all and everybedy,

Things would have proceeded according to sucialéiiatic principles

and the development would have been in the direction of socialism.
Everything would have procesded according to the Western principles

and according to the pattern of the \lestern system,.

See answer %o question (28),

I certainly would have hoped that he would have remained in power,

I don't think that the situation weuld have been worse.

Good ,

If they are good to the people, good, if they mistreat pﬁuple,thqi’

bad.
Good,

As it was in Hungary it was not gqrsp

'ghay used to say that in the West hh;:rf; imperialism. My answer j
is!rather imperilaism than Soviet paradise. '
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(29g) Cood.

(29n) They didn't bother me, it was geod,

(294) Good 100 percent,

(293) I don't know him too well,

(29k) R Good.

(291) I don’t knov.

(29m)  Good.

(29n) Good,

(30) It would be either the National peasant Party or a Christian

party.
(30a) Pé%ur Veres would be the most popular leader,
(31a) Less,

(31b) Less.

(31e) Less.

(31d) Less,

(31e) More.

(31f) More.

[ﬁEg] Avaqﬁﬂg Pari;y members less,

fiih] There was no private trade,

(311) They only bagan operating after 1955,

(32) Farmern; factory workers, and white collar workers were better off,
Who were worse off? I don't really know. Xamx Those who worked
on the largs estates,

(332) Ceincide.
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(33b) Conflict.

(33e) Conflict,

(33d) Conflict,

(33e) Conflict,

(33f) Coincide,

(33g) Coinecide,

(33h) Coincide to about 60 perecent,

(331) There wasn't much of an issue between them,

(333) CcConflict.

(34) My chief concern was that the good (i‘od would permit me and my
family to come out here to the United States and that Commmunism
should cease existing the quicker the better. I was praying so
that the USA may prosper. 7A¢s ¢S /@ tha¥®¢ J Have
éa jﬂ,)/ Lo a sk e ypuﬁ ?.U.E.rtfzbﬂ.

(35) The Communists,and the bureaucrats working for them,would be
fighting for the present regime, Otherwise the entire popula-
tion would be againat them.

Iiﬁl I don't think my mpkmx opinion has changed since I left Hungary.
I held pretty much the same views there,
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I should like to ask you if it is possible to send in an article
to the press here? I should like to write into the press and
tell them how badly misled we were when they told us that we would
receive very bad treatment here, thatf:u‘a.!l.d give us bad apartments,
etc.; ete, !
I have no particular opinion about this interview. It was quite
long but we have time after all,
Tes,
I don't think I have to protect you,
Yes.
Tou didn't ask me how we were living from day to day. During
Harvest time, we were working very hard and yet we were living

on potatoes. (This was in 1951«1952) I told them that we i
cannot work iéwa don't get enough to eat, One of my fattened pigs |
dia: and I buried him, Later we excavated the pig, took his bacon
and meat,and wve ate 1t, At that time we receive{tm kilograms

of bread per week for the nine of us, I went to the £mxm farm

me, I went to the Party secretary., He told me that he was not
interested, and that I should drop dead, {6{" ""-/ "”f‘f "’”gfl.
I went from Pontius to Pilate (W€ nlent '{"# #&Z,‘y children

in the meartime, were waiting for me at home just as the little I

pigs are weiting for their mother. This went on for weeksyx .
The situation was very bad up until June, 1953, Imre Nagy made

—
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the sale of bread free. The sale of bread actually became free
withtgaven days and Imre Nagy launched a protest against the

large scale exportation of meat to Soviet Russia. This was one

of the reasons why they got rid of him. Ve were not able to get
bread anywhere, Pelicemen were beating the people and were try=
ing to disrerse those who were standing in line for bread, P If
and when we did get some bread, it was i :asﬁhié to eat it; 86 bad
was its qﬁalitr, If people were saying R&kosi was responsible
for all this, then they were arrested, What a ﬁqiihla; ﬁwutal
world it wes,

I don't ever want to go back to Hungary, All my life I've always
wanted to come to the USA., From 19455 on I kept on dreaming about
this day ard night. -

I am going to write to you yet, I assure you. |
I have no knowledge of any documents or of pictures.

Iﬁa; I thirk I could write a very interesting book about my experien

Hﬂt




